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Joan Bush: Governor Stas~~ 9 I ~;;ld like to take you beck 38 years
to what must have been an almost e1eetric moment at the San Francisco
Con1"erence when ~ou were involved in drawing up the Charter of tbe United
Nations. I should ~ike to quote Bane of your own vords. as you enthusiasticall7
recount ed thi s happen ing in a speech some nine days later.

Harold Stassen: Th1rt)r-eight years ago. You are really reacbing back.

QUillTIOrl.: This is What you .a1d at the be~inning of this speech.
and I think it is rather nice.

"It vas a thrilling manent on the at"ternoon of June 23, 1945 vhen
the question vas put to the Steering Camnittee of the Conference aB to
the approval of the Charter as it then lay before the; the result
of hours and days and weeks of discussion and dissention. of con1"erence
and of canpran1se. of translation and rf!Vision. It vas late in the
aftern"oon in Room 223 01" the Veterans Building,where so many earnest
discussions had t&ken place. The argmlents over clauses had been
carried up right up to the hour iJ:Jnediately preceding the d!scusI1011.
Chairman StettiniuB asked it there vas any turther discussion. There
vas no response. Then he said 'Those who approve of the Charter will raise
their hand!>'. The interpreter immedia.te1y restated the question in
French. and down the long tables the hands of the Chairmen 01' delegationS
besan to rise. The 8eeretariesquickly counted, turned to the Chairma.n

. and said 'With your Tote, Sir, it is 50 votes. or unanimous. t "

Do you recall how you C<X1tinued? What you said. vas I think, very moving:
"Somehow in t he atmosphere of that room as you looked trom face to

1"aee, as you thought 01' the bUlion and a halt of the world '& peoples that
were re:presented. 01' all colours a.nd 01' many ra.ces t tongues and creeds,
as you realized that most of them had steed together through extremely
dit'1"ic:ult years ot bitter fighting and suffering in the var. there vasr

a de1"in1te inner feeling that the Conference had. been a real success,I
that thts United Nations Charter might well becane one of the truly
great dex:uments 01' all time."
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You were obviously elated. You vent on to deliver quite a long speech,
which I think: would have broken your ccmpaiE;n rule of never speaking tor
more tha.n 20 minutes, in which you explained -

STASsm: ~a.s that the one in Washington D. C.1'

-QU"iZTIOH: That is right.

STASsrn: There was a report in Wa.shington.

Qill.mIOlI,: And it vas broadcast, I think, na.tionrlde. You called it
a truly human docUI!lent and you explained its veak.nesses and its strengths,
and Bet out broad policies for the future.

STASS~i: I think I said we had obtained a beach head -

~umTIOl~: You did.

STASSU; : - in mankind' 8 long struggle tor peace; that it did not
guarantee peaee, but it v&s a beach head that then 'WOuld be there-tor the
future.

QUESTION: l/hat we would like to do toda7 is' to try to capture the
long days of consultations and Jl:cetings, the hi~ points and low points and
the s.tI:1osphere, something ot the behind-the-scenes nerotiations of the
Conference through your mind a.nd senses as you participatPd. in it and. as you
contributed to it.

Before we launch int 0 recollectiot!8 ot the Conference, I wonder it
you couJ.d cast your moo back yet another few weeks. just before you vent ott
for briefings in Washington. Was your Ql'PQint'!J!ent to the delege.tioo a surprise
to you!
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STASSEC1: Y&8, in one respect t in that I vas out. in the \."8.r. I
wa.s out on Admira.l lialsey's Staft. The background vas that I had advocated
:!'ublicl.y, I thiny. as fe.r back as 8 January 1943. that there should be a
United liations orga.nized to follow through a1'ter the var, and I bad spoken
quite extensively about that before I hed gone on active duty in the Navy.
I Ilaa a190, of' course. spok.en in scme of the dL.'"1ners in Washington 'Where
!7e~ide.'1t Roosevelt had been preflent~ I vas uso Chaiman of the National
Governors, and in that context had so::n.~ conferences nth President Roosevelt
on Lend-Lease and so forth. T!1en 1 had r,cne off into active duty in the
",-ar. ~he !D.o~ent of surprise vas vhen Admiral Halsl!Y called me into bis
cabin one day and put a dispatch across the table to ne. It vas a dispatch
fr~ President Roosevelt coming baclo: fran Yalta asldng him vhether he vould
seed C~ander Stassen back to the United States for the United Nations Conference.
That was rrty notice. I had had no up,;;,to-date information. We vere very actively
in the var. Then Admiral F.alsey said "HaroM, do YO'..t vant to do this?"
Of course. the dispatch itself vas a surprise. In my own mind I had been
vorUng and advocating steps towards world peace ~or a number of years e.nd
I had ~elt really that as a young naval reserve officer even though I was
a.lso a Governor when Pearl Harbour had happened that my right thing to do
wa.s vhat I did do, vhichwas to resign as Governor and bO on active duty
in tbe ~mr. In a way I tbought I "liltS leaving bE"hind r.-y real life r,:oa.l o~

vorkinn: towards 'World peaee.

'i'hen that messat;;E' from Preside>.nt Roosevelt shoved that he had remembered
m:t advocacy and he naned me as the third of' 0'\11" party t the Repub1ican Part7.
Senator Arthur Vandenberr. was the Chairman of the Senate Foreign Relations
COi:l"":ittee and the leading Republican in the United States Senate. Congressman
Eaton vas the Chairma.', of the House Foreign Ml'a.ir6 Ccrnrottee, the leading
Republica.n in the House. I vas then the third Republican that he appointed.
It is quite clear that if I had not been out in tbe vnr he could not very
well have reach£od over every one elSE" in the Republica.n Party and. recognized
the ta.ct that I had been 8.dvocatin~ that th~re ou$t to be a United. Nations.
As far as I knw, I YeS the first one in active public life in the Unit~d

States to advocate ths.t there should be a Unitrd nation,:;. I think that that
vas said back years aeo, and I do not. remember anybody claiming that they
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had. advocated it earlier than I did. Those speeches, o'f course, are on record.

When that dispatch came I told Admiral Halsey "Of course, I would very

mueh like to'dO it" and he said "What about your section of the staff?" I

was then Assistant Chief of Staff for Administration. I said "Admiral, you have

always told us that we have to have two officers ready to take over if anything

happens in battle, and I have two such officers and I would recamnend that one

of them, Lieutenant-Commander Herbert Carroll, shoul.d take my place."

He said ''Well, when that' s over back there would you like to come back? rr and I
said "Yes, very much."

So the orders were drawn that I was to leave Admiral Halsey and go and report

to President Roosevelt for the purposes of the drawing up of the United Nations

Charter, and when that was completed I should rejoin the Staft, which is what

I did. That is why' it was a kind of unusual circumstance, in that I was there

for the signing and drafting through those weeks, and I vas also present for

the surrender in Tokyo Bay at the end of the war.

You realize, of course, too, that When Ye convened the war was still going

on both in Europe and in Japan in the Pacific Ocean. While we were there VE

Day- came 6 May or 8 Mayor something like that so we were in session in

San Franeisco when .VE Day came. We had completed the Charter and I went back

out into the Pacific before VJ Day, before the ending of the war in the Pacific.

That was that background.

Then I flew back with those orders and repo~ted to President Roosevelt in

the White House, and we had. a discussion of the objectives of the United

Nations. Then I went back out to the Fleet for a brief time to get the

organization set up and then came back to join the delegation in the preparatory

work of the United States delegation for the beginning of the Conference. Then

in the midst of that President Roosevelt died. So the time I had flown back and

saw him in his White House office, in the Oval Office, vas the last time I saw him

alive. I was in San Francisco when the flash came that President Roosevelt

had. died. Very shortly President Truman reappointed the same delegation. That is

why it is sometimes said that the delegation vas appointed by both President

Roosevelt and President Trunan, because he did reappoint it was necessary

tor him to, and he did it the same delegation to take part. That delegation

then met and prepared for the San Franeisco Conference.
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QUESTION: When you say you met President Roosevelt, do you mean you
met him privately before you met him with the delegation? I think the delegation
went on the first day that they met together officia.lly in Washington.

STASSEN: I met him privately when I tlew back. You see, in effect his
dispatch to Admiral Ralsey and ~ orders were to return to the United States from
the Pacific Fleet and report to the President, so I first reported to him. You
say that the whole delegation then also saw him. But that was a personal conference
when I first reported back.

QUESTION: Could you relate sanething 01" your discussions that you recall?

STASSEN: Yes, tor one thing, it was very evident to me - I had worked
with him before I went out on active dutY', as Chairman of the Governors - my first
impression vas, that he had tailed considerably,that he did not look well, but that
he still had that vigour of action as tar as his emphasis in his speech of the
necessity of getting a Charter dra.fted and that it would not be easy. Re spoke a
bit of his conferences at Yalta. I noticed that when he poured himself a glass
of vater on his desk his hand vas very shaky. So he wasn It really very well, but
he vas very determined about the necessity tor a United Nations and he vas confident
that Ye would do everything we could to get a success:t'ul Charter.

QUESTION: Perhaps we could talk about one or two of the delegation meetings.
When. you tirst met all together - I think all the delegates were present
at the first meeting - had you met many of them before? Did you knOll them personally?
Secretary of State Stettinius, tor instance: did you knov him?

STASSEN: I knew them all. I had been very active in public matters
before the var, 80 I knew everyone in different degrees. I had met Virginia
Gildersleeve, I think at the Nev York Harold Tribune Forum, which was held in
those years. Virginia Gildersleeve, the one woman on our delegaton, vas the Dean
of Barnard College, which vas at Col_bia.
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QUESTION: She vas also in the Navy, I think, wasn't she?

STASSEN: Not that I recall, but it could have been; she could have

been a consultant or sanetbing. But she vas very aetive in education, a leading

educator and a very strong member. Then of course there vere those vho were in

public life. I have already mentioned Senator Vandenberg and Congressman Eaton

of our Republican Party, and then of President Roosevelt's party, there were

Senator Tom Connally, the Democrat from Texas, and Congressman Sol Bloom, who vas

the *enior Democrat in the House Foreign Aftairs Committee. Then ot course

there was Secretary of State Stettinius. Dean Gildersleeve and I made up the

seyen. Cordell Hull was also named, but he vas not able to actually participate.

He vas the former Secretary of State. I think every one of the seven of us knew

every other one of the seven, and we had our 0'WIl varied 'backgrounds.

QUESTION: It was really quite a clever selection of a delegation, with

both parties

STASSEN: President Roosevelt and you think of him reaching to both

parties and both Houses, the Senate and the House of course had very much in

mind the great problems in the United States structure after World War I, the

League of Nati~ns and all of that, and the problems with the Senate. So I think

he very visely reached out to the tvo ranking people in foreign matters in both

parties in both Houses of Congress, with the Secretary of State. He told me

'When I reported back to him that he remembered very clearly various speeches and

statements I had made from the preceding years. I had been very active in public

aatters. I had been Governor it vas in my third term that I resigned and vent

OIl active duty in the Navy. I had also been serving far two years as Chairman

of the National Governors. So we bad a lot ot contact. So he knev my views and

he knew that Whole situation.

It vas a very interesting group of men and vemen and we developed quite a

group of advisers and staff. As I have said,to begin with the war vas going on,

80 in t17ing back trom the Navy, of course lee:rl.ng my own navy staff out there

to carry (IQ with Admiral Balsey, and then, having turned over the Governorship

to my Lieutenant-Governor, Edvard 'J.'hye. Yho later became a United States Senator,

too; when I .resigned as Governor he beeame Governor and that whole staff vas
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there, so literally I vas t'lying back trcm the Pacific nth no staff at all.

As I th~t ot that I sent a telegram to .CJIle ot the Presidents ot universities

that I knew President Conan ot HarYa1"d and Prelident Dodds ot Princeton and

asked Whether they could check wether they had sCllllle exceptionally brilliant

atudentl in international matters Yho had been out in the war and been wounded

and got back. They cabled me various recamaendations, and that is really the way

I tilled my statt. I had a remarkable statt out there lien like John 'l'hompson and

Cord Meyer. men who had been brilliant in international studies and been out in the

war and wounded and back bane. '1'hat is the way they were _de available.

QUESTIOlf: They were yom- personal aidesf

STASsm: They became more than aides wry staft. !hen trCD the 'Foreign

Service another interesting thing happened, which vas that shortly after I arrived

back the State Department in developing their perscanel tor the Conterence asked

it I would mind taking on my statt tor those aspects ot the trusteeship that would

deal with At'rica", a young Foreign Service otficerby the name ot Ralph Bunche. I

listened and I said "not tor African attairs. I'll take him tor a comprehensive

statt position like anyone else." or couru. they were rather taken aback, but they

then did assign Ralph Bunche to me and ve developed a traendous relationship at

that time. That then carried on tbrou.!h, because he vas a very luperior individual,

as the United Kations records themselves will Ihov. He worked 1d.th me all through

the Conterence, along with Ben Gerig, who vas another 'Poreign Service otticer.

They were the two Foreign Service people. Then the young veterans that I spoke ot
made up the statt.

Cl1ESTIOll: What about Leo :Pasvalskyf I think be vas involved.

STASSEN: He ot course came in trom the delegation as a whole. He vas

a co-ordinator and he did not haYe any relationship to me personal.l1' only through

the delegation. There vas a considerable delegation statt and so :forth~ but that

vas another I18.tter.
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Qlm3TIOlf: I think after the first session ot the delegation prepe.rat10n

meetil14s in Washington TOU were not there thro~h the rest ot the lIleetill«s when

the)" renewed the Dumbarton Oaks proposals. were TouT

STASSD: 10, I had got all the documents, but then I new back out to

the Navy in order to make certain ot the transition, because, as I said, I vas

Assistant Chiet ot Statt tor Administration in what vas then the greatest fleet

that had ever been" at sea. I ot course wanted to see that Admiral Halsey's

responsibilities there and rq responsibilities to him were carried out right.

So we worked out the transition and Lieutenant-Commander Carroll taking

charge and all the various things. '!ben I came 'back and re-Joined the delegation.

But I took the Dumbarton Oaks papers and all the other memoranda with me and vent

tly:l.ng OYer the Pacific reading all those papers.

QUESTIOlf: You weren't present, I think, at the second meeting ot the

delegation with President Roosevelt when he brieted the delegation on the three

votes question reached at YaltaJ and the later meeting when the delegations'

recCllUllendations were made to the President about the United States requesting only

one vote. Did )"ou get brieted on this by anybody atterwards or did you just learn

about itf

STASSEN: I of course followed al.l the minutes of meetings and things

ot that kind and knew that in effect there vas a canprardse where the Soviet Union

"ould bave the extra votes under the circumstance where they had been saying that

the United States had so many associates, had so 1Il&n7 votes that way, as the)"

looked at it, and this ccmprcmise had really been reached between President

Roosevelt, as I understood it. and Marshal Stalin and Mr. Churchill. That is

probably a good place to reach out broader. When we got into the very difficult

and long negotiations on every part ot the Charter at San Francisco, ve analysed

what in effect vas the parameter vithin which ve vere meeting. In other Yords, ve

vere a delegation representing Governments. There had been these sessions ot
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President Roosevelt and Marshal Stalin and Winston Churchill,_and of' course there

vas the vhole matter ot the war still going on, to begin with, and what agreements

had been llade, where there might be t'lexibility. We very early -particularly

Senator Arthur Vandenberg and I - realized that ve had to think through at vhat

point, it ve were not able to get vhat ve vould have considered to be the best

Charter, it vould be better to fail to have a Charter; in other words, you had to

think of the ultimate situation, what was essential to make it a desirable beginnin~

as contrasted to saying "We can't get a Chaner tor & world organization now and

we had better Just go home and then after the war is over try to do it again" t which

ve knew vas a very grave thing. But that is the background trail. one ot the most

signiticant areas.

The question of the veto and the interpretation ot the veto in the Security

Couneil took a lot ot consideration. You undoubtedly know that there were nrious

phases. We had the United States delegation meetings. i'hen we had the so-called

Fi",e-Power meetings and then ve had various bilateral aeetings going on. Then ot

eourse there vere meetings in the formal commissions and committees and plenaries

and a lot ot negotiating. One of the crucial questions on the veto power

was whether the veto could stop even a discussion and whether the veto could prevent

any kind ot action in the Assembly. There vas & lot ot earnest eX&1lination ot Just

hOY that should vork out. Really Senator Vandenberg and It and I th~nk the United

States delegation, after a lot ot 4isc~siont cCl1cl1¥led that it the veto eould

eompletely stop any kind ot expr~ssion in the United Nations and any kind of inquiry,
. I

any kind ot Assembl1 action. it would be better not to make a start mder those

circumstances. That led to President Tr\D&n sending Harry Hopkins over to see

MarshaL Stalin, The background ot President Truman' s decision to send him and to

his going was that the at least surface directions at that point we f'elt would

have made it impossible tar the organization to be ett'eetive, 80 there had to be 80me

yielding 011 that point ot the veto. '!'hen out ot thole turther negotiations and the

turther ccnference of Itopkins with Marshal Stalin came the rerisims down to tllf"

point vbere the actual pn.etiee hU tollowed einee that time.
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QUESTION: BOY did )"ou become 10 involved in trusteeshipT

STASSEN: 'irat of all br being a.signed to do it. We divided up.

Each Ilefllber of the delelation had certain things that ther took on espeei&1l)".

It happened that there bad not been any advance agreement on trusteeship. 'rhe

issues were so intense between the colony position and the mandate position and

all of that, that it had not been possible tor them to get any kind of advance

a.greement, 10 that they early felt that unles. this could be worked out there

probably could not be a Charter - that il, that it it vasn tt clear what vas

going 'to happen and hoy the procedures WOUld be handled over the mandates that

had come out ot World War I and the ma.ny colonie8 that were then around the

world, you could not really get atarted in a United Bations Organization with

its objectives. So fairly early in the al!lsignments I vas assigned to the

trusteeship phase. '!'hat i8 hoy I got into that. I vas also assigned tairl)"

early to be the one that would go out and brief the media, because in the earl)"

ltages tkere were a lot ot misunderstandings with the media over what vas

happening and a lot ot dire predictions ot the impossibility of agreement and

things of that kind. One ot the problems in the early stages would be that,

a perfectl)" natural thing with so many ditterent viewpoints and different

countries represented, it scme individual country's delegate telt aggrieved

or tru8t%"ated he would search out the press and give a very gloomy or rather

~storted view and that would become the world headlines. So very early our

delegation decided that the lI.edia had to be briefed to be really in perspective

as to What vas happening. 'than they asked me to take that on, 80 that vas one

of my othe%" responsibilities. We divided ditferent assignments.

QUESTION: You also had the responsibility for the Security Council,

I think, didn't you, with -

S'l'ASSEN: With Senator Tom Connally. Senator Tom Connally really vas

the No. 1. We usually bad two lIembers of the delegation on each aspect, with

one of' them in effect being the prime and the other being the deputy,,:, Ye were

...
& 

SETB 11 

QUESTION: HOY did )"ou become 10 involved in trusteeshipT 

STASSEN: 'irat of all by' being a.signed to do it. We divided up. 

Each lIlember of the deler;ation had certain thingl that they took on especiall)". 

It happened that there bad not been any advance agreement on trusteeship. trhe 

issues were so intense between the colony position and the mandate position and 

all of that, that it had not been possible tor them to get any kind of advance 

agreement, 10 that they earl)" felt that unless this could be worked out there 

probably could not be a Charter - that ii, that it it vasn It clear vbat vas 

going 'to happen and how the procedures WOUld be handled over the mandates that 

had come out ot World War I and the ma.ny colonies that were then around the 

world, )"ou could not really get started in a United Ifations Organization with 

its objectives. So fairly early in the aSlignments I vas assigned to the 

trusteeship phase. That is how I got into that. I vas also aSligned fairly 

earl)" to be the one that would go out and brief the media, because in the early 

ltages tkere vere a lot of misunderstandings with the media over vhat vas 

happening and a lot of dire predictions ot the impossibility of agreement and 

things of that kind. One of the problems in the early stages would be that, 

a perfectly natural thing with 10 many ditferent viewpoints and different 

countries represented, if some individual country's delegate felt aggrieved 

or frustrated he would search out the press and give a very glOOMY or rather 

~storted yiev and that would become the world headlines. So very early our 

delegation decided that the Iledia had to be briefed to be really in perspective 

as to What vas happening. trhan they asked me to take that on, so that vas one 

of my other responsibilities. We divided different assignments. 

QUESTION: You also had the responsibility for the Seeurity Council, 

I think, didn It you, with ­

STASSEN: With Benator Tom Connally. Senator Tam Connally really vas 

the No.1. We usually bad two members of the delegation on each aSPect. with 

one of them in effect being the prime and the other being the deputy - we were 



SET B 12

all reUly seven equal people but in ~he Ya1' in which we organized ~o get

thing. done. On the Security Council Senator Tom ConnaUy was Bo. 1 and I vas

his second, so to speak. On tt"Usteeship I vas No. 1 and Congressman Bloom was

lIlY lecond. That 11 the way we kind of divided up organization-vise to tollow

~hese things up.

QUESTION: It i8 very funny because in the official records and all

the notes at the time you were not assigned to t'rUsteeship in the ofticial

records~

STABSEN' : I didn'~ know that.

QUESTION: Yes. It's very str8.nge. You were assigned to judicial.

Did you every have anything to do vith it!

STASSEN: Yes. I did some work on Judicial. I don't recall all the

background,but I think that a lot of those advance papers were more or less

what the staft thought should be and then the delegation would actually make

the decisions when things came together,

QUESTION: Were the (iecisions made in Washington or in San lI'rancisco?

STASSEN: The decisions were made in San heeilco between the

delegation on things like that. Of course. Secretary of state Stettinius

alV&y's there. 10 there was always that consultation and his communication

with President Truman. But as far as the working methods, the delegation

very much was a group that moved vith the authority of a delegation. But,

as I said a little earlier. we tried to be perce'Ptive as to the tramework
in which ye were working. That is. this vasn't anything that was unrealistic

beeause there were Governaents involved. There was a war still going on and

there were Presidents and Beads ot State that had made cOllllllitmentl, so ye had

to think "How do we shape a Charter under those circumstances'"

'. 
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QUESTION: I would like to take 70U back to Washington, the brietings,

3ust tor a lI1OII1ent, it I may. Rev did you get JOur brietings on trusteeshipT

Did you have any ideas of your own or vas it ccmpletely nev to youT

STASSEN: 10. ot course, I had been avare ot the world. I knew Yhat

vas going on in the world and had been a very active student trom early years.

There were brieting paper.. Really when the work began on trusteeship there

were divided opinions aB to ~ust hov to do it in almost tnery Government as well

as between Governments. There were very stronglY held views between different

parts tnen ot a Foreign Ministry or a State Department as to ~ust what to do.

Con.sequently, it had been impossible to get any kind ot advance document betore

the .ession convened and then in our early meetings we could not get any

document. Many prOPOlals had been put forward. That vas where we tinally decided

between Ralph Bunche and Ben Geri,g and Cord Meyer and John Thompson and me, and

talldng it .through, that we came upon thil IOrt ot technique. They all .aid

there vas no diplOlll&tic precedent for it, but we bad to break through in lome

V&y', 10 Ye laid down one day what we ealled the working paper as a pol1tion ot
no government but &s & document that we could .-tart to work tram. We spent

a fev days then tal king about what vaB the status ot the working paper and What

it really meant and .0 forth, and then finally they turned to beginning to look at

the paragrapbsot it and nart to amend. Really, the trusteeship part grew out

ot that vorking paper over a long period ot time.

QUESTION: That vaB ~ump1ng ahead a little tor me, because It. atiU

very interested in the last three meetings ot the delegation in Washington,

where I think you had & galaxy ot Admirals and Secretaries ot State all putting

their various vieva, and I vonder it you could recall for us those meetings.

at whieh I believe you were present.

STASSD: One might say that there vas the natural apprehension that

there i. in every GOvernment ot Whether or not lome kind ot agreement should

be made that would be. a handicap to the .eeurity ot the country or would be

.. 
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an obligation that could not be fulfilled. Many difterent nevp:>ints were

presented. There were verr active nevpoillts in the whole count'r'y. There vas

a certain amount ot nevpoint in the world, in tact, that the whole thing vas

a waste ot time because there would certainly be another world varin 15 or

20 yeus. There vas lot ot that kind ot expression, that no vay could 40 or

50 countries reach an agreement, and it they did it vouldn't mean much anyhOW

because there would be another world war in 15 or 20 years under the way the

world had been moving. But the more attirmative view increasingly came to ,

the tore. and ot course with Senator Vandenberg and Senator Connally both haTing

IUch respect in the Senate} there vas the teeling that if ve reached a Charter

tbat they both were ready to recommend it vould get ratified. Under.our torm

ot Icverttment the ratification by a two':'thirds vote is a crucial thing as to any

treaty torm actually getting into effect. So there vas a lot ot discussion

with Senator Connally and Senator Vandenberg and a lot ot respect tor their

views t because they in turn were thinking in terms of hoy they would carry it

through the Senate. That vas part ot that whole process.

QUESTION: '!'hat vas very ingenious t a big comparilon with the League

of Bations days when there vas no support in the Senate at all. Did rou teel

that the death of President Roosevelt would Jeopardize the outcome ot the

Conference in any vay?

STASSEN: It val a very deeply moving and very _jor event. and ot
course the promptness ot President Truman in saying that the Conterence should

proceed and that the lame delegation should carry on meant a great deal t

but t as rou know, President Rooaevelt and Winston Churchill had first brought

out. that Atlantic Charter very early. and then there had been in the Senate

What vas called the B2R2 resolution. That vas Senators BaU. Burton, Hatch and

Ifill, a bi-partiaan re.olution about developing an international organization

tor peace. And there had been & lot ot study groups and a lot ot discussions

tor a long period ot time, and then in other countries there had been papers

developed, views expressed. So there had been a lot ot thinking springing out

ot the early beginnings. and some going all the vay back into the League ot

Nations periOd. And then ot course having come through this Second World- W~
t.nd thinking. . • •

• 
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about boy Ye emerged from this one and all of that.

QUESTION: If we could Just have a quickie question on your impressions

when you arrived at San franciaco. 40 you rec&l1 anything particular' '!'he

other delegates, for instance, from Europe: it must have been quite a revelation

to them seeing a city with lights.

STASSEN: Yes, it vas in that sense a Tery dramatic and very moving

time. and of course some of the delegates vould be arriving from Europe Just

about as fast as their countr1ea were liberated in the war itself, and some were

added on in some instances, and many of those who had been active in resistance

movements or aetive in the va:r in Europe would come over to represent those

countries, and 1ikewise same other parts of the world. There vas a very strong

sense of vhat a war really meant. In tact, I mentioned Cord Meter: while we

were meeting his twin brother vas killed in the war, right during the san
Francisco Conference, BO those kinds of events were there. I mean that the

war vas Itill going on and delegations were getting news Of the war and things

of that kind.

QUESTION: It vas a very good choice for a meeting place actually ..

in the middle, as it were. of the Far Eastern war. the Pacific. and the European

war.

STASSER: Yes, I think in that sense there was a real value in selecting

a Weat Coast city and san Prancisco in particular. in that it on the one hand got

a little bit of perspective of being different than Washington, the eapital of

our own country. and it worked out. because it could be a Bort of total

cClllmUnity for the purposes of the drafting and for the purposes of the

Conference. It was thing going on in San PranciBco, whereas./ in either

Washington or Rev York it Would not have bad quite that same focus at that time.

I think it vorked out. Obviously it worked out, because we finally got an
agreement.
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QUESTION: Do 70U recall the general mood of the first Big Pour

conference, consultation, that you attended?

STASSEN: Ye.. One thing that vat very evident vas that the

translation! into difterent languages were quite a probla in those early

stages understanding vhat was being said; slowness ot sequential translation

as compared with the way it has developed. Those interpreters, thOle

translators, Yho had great facility were very much in demand in other words,

those who could listen to a three- tour-ainute presentation and then really

give it back in another language were very JlUch in demand and very much needed.

But in the Pive-Povel' meetings and Pour-Power meetings and ditferent kinds ot
formulations they had there, at tirst it vas very difticult to get a real

communication going. On the one hand it vas the language and on the other

hand there were ditterences of circumstances.

QUESTION: Do you bave any reminiscences ot your meetings with the

first individual member! ot the Big Pour, the four sponsoring Poverl: Eden

Molotov and Sung, tor example!

STASSEN: Yes. I remember, ot courle, how quickly it became apparent

that Hr. Molotov had telt be had very clear directions ot what he could and

could not do" and we very quickly learned that the right and intelligent way

to go at things if sQIIle proposal vas to be aade to him vas to present it,

lee that it vas tTanllated adequately to be understood and watch out for the

I1'Uances ot words that cDuld have difterent meanings in translation, and then

to lay "Let' s study this", instead ot trying to get an immediate reaction.

Then after a few days, he would say "Let t S have another meeting on such and

such a sUbJ eetn, and then we knew they had done their studies and had their

communications, and they could go forward with it. There vas a period there

when 1'0\1 might lay the natural working approach ot both Great Britain and

the United States, and the Prench too for that matter, would be tbat something

vas brought forward and you start· discussing it right away, and tbat vas not
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the thing to do, bee&Use 10\1 limply put ICIIle ot the delegations in a ditticult

spot and it you pressed tor reactions you just put them in an impossible position.

SO the matter or lome patience became a Tery important part ot that early working

to give the procels a chance to go through. Likewise that crucial decision

to send Hopkins directl,. to lee Marshal Stalin vas so important.

QUESTION: Do you have any recollections ot the opening ceremony? Was

it impressive?

STASSEN: Tel, Tery colourtul, Tery' impressive.

QUESTION: It we get down to perhaps the substantive work and 8tart

nth trusteeship, Wbat nashes into your mnd, what do you tirst think ot

vhen you recall the whole trusteeship debate?

STASSEN: ot course, one ot the obvious things vas that we were there

dealing 'Yery importantl,. v1th the tuture ot a large percentage ot the world's

population· Yho were not present. I suppose in that sense a large part ot the

~yth from the original 50 countries to 157 now, a large number ot those
reflect.the change tram trusteeship out into independent sovereign countries

with their own memberships. There were so many different backgrounds about

the mandates and difterent kinds ot colonial experiences. And it in the unfolding,

ot· historr, it it vas not worked out right, that what happened in relationship

to thOle peoples and to their territories and the resources that they represented",

vas not handled right within thOle areas themselTes and their resources, eould

be the aeeds ot the third trorld war. So there vas that sense of the importance of

it. ThI..t'.1 why even though it vas so difficult in the early stages and 8til!

renects many difficulties in the 1IOrld, and ot course the Yhole Mid-East Itlatter

Vhieh is still luch .. Tery intense problem i. very much present as to what vas

going to happen in reference to the Arab countries and tbe Israeli and the rest

of Africa very intense issues.
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QUESTION: Did 10\1 teelthat the lack ot 'iye-Pover consultations

prior to the Conference val a big disadvantage or did the consultatiye group

that 1'OU chaired that vu Bet up, did 10\1 (Uickly get down to these discussions'

STASSD: In the matter ot the trusteelhi~ I don't' recall that any of

the iBsues between the major Povers ever gat up to the Five-Pover Conference tor

decision. '!'hey all vent back into each country, ot course, and the progress,

or la.ck ot it, vas reported to the Five-Power Conferences. !ut as ter as I

remember we had to work those language questions and substantive issue questions

out within the context ot that trusteeship group, because ot course the Five-Powers ger~

also dealing with the Security Council veto and many other subjects of that kind.,

and the Ililitary interest in trusteeship and the question ot,what vas going to

happen in the Pacitic IBlanda and how that would aftect the security ot the

United States and other countries cut into tTUsteesh1p.

QUESTION: But 1O'U bad your own sort ot little "ive-Pover group with

the consultative group or which you vere chairman, didn't you'

STASSEN: Yes·

QUESTION: Do 7'0\1 remember the members - Viscount Cranborne -

STASSEN: Bobby CranbOrne ve called him, Bobbity. tes, I remember

him "Very vell.

QUESTION: And Hr. Sobolev.

STASSEN: Yes, he vas very active.

QUESTION: And Wellington Koo.
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STASSEN: Wellington Koo from China. and I think the l'rench delegate

chauged. at one stage.

QUESTION: I think it started as Paul !mile Naggiar. Do you

remember him? Perhaps it changed afterwards.

STASSEN: Yes.

QUESTION: How would you characterize the early meetings of that group.

because )"Ou .et many tiae8. didn't you?

STASSEN: Many time8.

QUESTION: Was there INch difficult)" in working up the working paper!

STASSEN: Yes. because the vieva were genuinely 10 different: the

matter -of by Vhat process voul.d colonies or mandates end and by Vhat process

would they emerge;Vhat would be the circumstances; what would be their rights.

That hS very important and Ver)" difficult.

QUESTION: What are your recollections of the long, heated debate

regarding non-self-governing territories' It took quite a long time. I think.

STASSEN: It vent on a long time. There were times when it Just seemed

like you Ilever could get an agreement on how to handle trusteeshitls. We vould

try 0U't different formulations and somebody vould knock them down. Then we would

try- another one. I think one place the Chairmen of the dele$tstionli throU$th

the Five-Power group, as I recall, in effect sent out word through their

delegations that there really could not be a Charter unless the t.rusteeship

thing was worked out. In other words. the)" put very much pressure on us to get

a section worked out. because it was one of the areas where it was very easy to

say 'Yell. agreement is Just not Possible". Then in effect they would say

"Well. the only way there's going to be a Charter is if there is a trusteeship'

• 
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section". Then we vould go back at it.

QUESTION: Do you remember the big Dattle about independence going into

the declaration'

STASSEN: Yes.

QUESTION: What do 1011 recall of that debate'

STASSEN: It was very intense: vhat it meant and what words to ule and

boY it' vould be interpreted in the tuture.

QtJF.<3TION: Words meant different things to different people. I think.

STASSEN: Yes. There Yere areas. too. where the translations and the

meNlings under different cultures were so important. I remember one aspeet

in the whole procesl. We came to realize that when there val some kind of

discussion about the circumstance under vb1ch an investigation might be

ordered in some countries, we vould think about ordering an investigation as

being the beginning of a process of getting in the facts, whereas
l

the meaning .

to ather Governments vas that if 1'OU ordered an investigation you really bad

~eady concluded that lODle'body vas guUty. To be ordered to be investigated vas

sort of the last straw rather than the beginning. It was all coming out of

different cultures, different torms ot government, things like that, that you

VOUld find that the same word translated could have very different meaning

and you had to be very alert that you didn't get some nuance like that and be

talking about two different things with the same language. '1'h&t also came up

in the factor that, as 10u know, the five languages for the document were to have

the same status.

".

QUESTION: It must have been very difficult when you were working

paragraph by paragraph with the different versions and the sequential translation.

'.. 
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STASSE:K: Yes, and we found that it vas desirable it an emenc!ment

was made in one language to diseuss the interpretation in alternate torms ­

that it it vas a certain Fretteh language or a certain Russian language 1011

might 8a1 it this way in English or you might say it that vay, and it 1011

discussed possible alternative interpretations tor words you would get a

greater lense ot the real meaning behind the proposal. That I think vas One

thing that on ditficult issues, and espeeial.1y' when you bave to have in mind

that we didn't then have the immediate translation - this matter ot sequential

translations, Which is a world ot ditterence trom What you have now developed

tor the techniques of immediate translation and a whole staft ot excellent

immediate translators, interpreter. - vas JlUch acre ditticult.

QUESTION: Yes, it makes the ¥bole thing so long, doesn't it'

S~ABSEN: Bot onlT long, but there is the potential ot a misunderstanding,

and it vas increased in the old method, particularly it 70u made a statement ot
.ome minutes I lengtH and then the interpreter gave it in the other language but

gave a ditterent sense scmevhere through. We used in important things, Which

vas almost aIwaTs, to t17 to have our own interpreters behind us to listen to the

other interpretations and immediatelY call our attention it they thought that there
valS some contusion over a !leaning. Sometimes it vas time-consuming,but it vas

"Iery bportant in that process.

QUESTION: I think that as Chairman ot the consultative grou~ you bad to

carry out quite a lot ot intormal. one-on-one. consultations. Do;you recall

some ot these?

STABSEN': Yes. 8y. one-on-one, they really never were one person to one
person, but one delegation to one other delegation ot the t'rUsteesbip people.

Vf!!r7 frequently soraeone 1rOUld come to me and ask tor a session on a certain

811bjeet - the Prench delegate, the Russian delegate, or Lord Cranborne - and ve

vould let a time and the tvo delegations would meet not the whole delegation.
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QUESTION: I think that as Chairman ot the consultative grout) you bad to 

earry out quite a lot ot informal. one-on-one. consultations. Do you recall 

some at these? 

STASSEN': Yes. By. one-on-one. they really never were one person to one 

person. but one delegation to One other delegation ot the t'rUsteesbip people. 

Very- frequently sClIileone would cOJIle to me and ask tor a session on a certain 

subject - the Prench delegate, the Russian delegate, or Lord Cranborne - and "e 

would let a time and the tvo delegations would meet not the whole delegation. 
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but that part ot the S!'Ql1p. That very t'requeD'tly' would be Congressm&l1 BlOCllll

ud Ralph Bunche and Ben Gerig and I would .eet with cowrterpart people t'rcm

Icme ot the other delegations When there vas a -Peeial problem up. Those were

Vt!!rT important, because )"OU had to tind )"OUr way through so many different

rlevs and ditferent attitudes. Of course, all Governments had to do lane

rielding e.s some gaining points.

QUESTION: Strategic areas, that whole subject: does that bring back

memories?

$TASSEN: VttrT much so. '!'here vas great concern that indirectly' the

strategic areas might be lost to proper strategic safeguards. so there were a lot

of negotiations over that. A position needed to be taken and things ot that kind.

QUESTION: I got the impression from the records that )"OU were

persona.l.ly' very concerned about the peoples of strategic areas - tor instance,

in the Pacific.

STASSElf: One of the key points vas how did )"OU rightly safeguard and

enhance the future rights of the peoples without prejudice to the basic world

strategic interest in that particular geography, to try to structure it so that

those two objectives ot having a proper safeguarding of strategic significance

anei a proper human interest and human rights approach to the people had to be the

twin matters brought torward.
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QUESTION: Did you ever ~ave the feeling of being sort of caught in the midc1le t

haVing to balance on one hand the strategic interests of the United States and the

colonia.I Po\rers a.'1d the interests of the anti-colonial PO~·7F.:r::- '?

~'.:':.:-;~:;; : Well eertainly. all the time. I mean - thro~hout - the Whole proees8
is trying to balance the different interests and get a basis on which mankind or

hU!l1anity can make progress ltithout war and it is always a matter of trying to find that

creative centre in those different interests.

QUESTION: Do you recall going back to thE" early days of the Conference

for a moment in a Big Four meeting that the Soviet Union injected the related issue

o"f eq,ual rights and self-determination in Chapter I of the purposes section, ! think

it \tas of the Charter and this vas accepted as a sponsor's amendment; do you recall

this? Molotov gave a press conference at the time; he called it or great, first-rate

importance to his Government and I vonder whether this had any effect on the

trusteeship debate and whether the United States and the United Kingdom realized at

the time, vhen it was accepted as a sponsor's amendment, what effect it might have on

the debate when they immediately brought up the question of independence?

STASSEN: I do not recall that clearly. I do recall the matter of the

interpretation of self-determination and independence, a lot of discussion going back

to Woodrow Wilson's points after the First World War and to the matter of

self-determination within colonies vhere there were different groups within the s~~e

colony and what would be the .. in etfect the dimensions of the group that could have

self-determination and some question of - you know - splintering and how general

recognition Of human rights, if larger groups were then kept together within viable

entities versus splintering into too many small countries. There were discussions of

that and concern for the future of it.

QUESTION: 'Who were the key p~rsonal1t1es, which delegates, delegations

stand out in your mind?

STASSEN: Well,. the ma.jor delegations had very important presentation, and

some vere - tor varying reasons - more active in getting solutions, or advocating.

Hr. Eva.tt of Australia 'To."as a very active delegate and really a very constructive one t

in tote.1. quite an advocate. Some of those trom the smaller countries in that sense 1·ft'.

Romu1.o from the Philippines vas a very active individual.
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QUESTION: Fighting for independence?

STASSEN: Yes. .

QUESTION: J.1r. Fraser, who chaired the Committee?

STASSEN: Fraser ,yes. There were a lot of personalities that General Srouts

vas a colourful character out of South Africa with his whole background. I remember he

would take long hikes up over those hills of San Francisco and nobody could keep up "'''ith

him. He was very colourful.

QUESTION: How would you characterize the functioning of that Com::nittee?

STASSEN: Well, I 8UppoSe that the right characterization really used to be

that you would have tovait another 50 years and see what finally happens to all these

areas and all these peoples obViouslY there have been tremendous changes in these 37

years and a lot of' continuing problems for all of them - almost all of them - and rea..11y

make a judgement in that longer term •• It was really quite remarkable finally to get El.

document and I would have the feeling that it had functioned quite well. As to Whether

you could take the experience of the 38 years and look back and say we could have dra,,"l1

thR.t up better you probably could, but at the time it was not easy to get anything

a.greed to.

QUESTION: Could we talk about the delegation for a moment, delegation

meetings, the different personalities? After working with them, for instance, for

over two months, how would you characterize each of them or one or two perhaps? lorere

there some with whom you worked well and felt more at easE' ..,dth, or ••• ?

STASS~J: We rE'ally all kept very active communication back and forth amon~

the seven. We would there was a differencE' in vho would see eye to E'ye on one issue.

or another issue, according to their background of experience and so on, and I tended

to be worldng more closely with Senator Vandenberg and he with me because of our

position in what was at that time in eff'ect the opposing party or the other party.

but we had both emphasized a lot the importance of infonned policy and in the war

itself, of being a united country, and so that that was the background of it. Dean

Gildersleeve and I had quite a lot of discussions different subjects, because in

effect we wexe the two that were not in a public office at tha.t particula.~·X!10Illent.
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She vas in education and I had been in State Government and was then out, so we had a

little different vie'Wpoint sometimes, a little different perspective. especially in

hUll12Ul rights and in the Preamble we did quite a bit of work on the Preamble.

QL~STION: I think that she considered that yo~ were the only one on the

delegation who was really interested in that Preamble, that the others, she said, did

not seem to care.

STA,SSEN: Well, I would not say that of the others. but it is sometimes

true as a matter of - as I said, we divided up the prime responsibilities - like - in

the matter of the regional approach in the you see there had been a Latin American

conference at Chapultapec and how this region, the South American, and the countries of'

this area .Tould relate to the world Organization and what effect it would have it

had a lot of tensions in it, a lot of uncertainties and a lot of different views. So

there would be times when some delegates would be so caught up in that that they would

not give much attention to and that was partly also a IlAtter ot reciprocal

confidence .. that is, I think, on the Preamble they would discuss it in our

delegation meetings but they would feel that Dean Gildersleeve would do an able job

there and she did tend to turn to me to help explain to the delegation or to try to

help work out some other language. We did quite a bit of work on that together.

QUESTION: Yes. from that original that was prepared by General Smuts

Which was so very stiff and certainly the Preamble has turned out to be a very

beautiful - I think - today; it is so often read at the conferences •••

STASSEN: Thank you, thank you. Yes, I was going to say, it is probably

quoted more than any other part of the Charter, is it not? That is one of the

interesting things. Of course, some views will, after all that is not a part of the

actual - you might say, biting force of the doc\l.'llent - but yet, psychologicallY, it has

tremendous signi ficance and it will •••

QUESTION!: We often get famous actors to read the Preamble at the United

Nations Concert each year. It com.es over very well, I think. How difficult was it to

Come to a unanimous position on the various issues within the delegation, because I

think you had this wonderful freedom to put your own views, but then I understand that

you would come to a unanimous decision on most issues? Did this take sometimes a lOng .• ?
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STASSEN: Well t no. One of the things from the studies of the you know ... the

Dumbarton Oaks and the whole situation and then the effects of Security Council action

and the veto in the Security Council I vas concerned as to the matter of self-defence

in e. circumstance if the Security Council was not acting and what effect that might have",

60 I originated the suggestion that there would be some kind of a section about

nothing in the Charter shall impair the inherent right of self-defence if an armed attack

occurs. And that was at first pretty much rejected; of course there was a general sort

of a mind-set of those who has worked on the original Dumbarton Oaks draft of objecting

to any change in it, especially in the early stages t but it soon became apparent that

it needed changing and in that instance we did at one stage reach a situation where !

was in effect told that - in a discussion, not a rough way, but it ......as ver;l clear - sincE'

I ""as the only one that had put that forward and no one else had joined in it, why
should I not just Withdraw Hr and I thought it was so
fundamental that there was a stage in which I said, "well, 1f the
Charter does not have sqmethlng like this, and If you all
,.ant to bO aheac., then I think the right thing for me to do is withdraw fro!:: the

delegation and sa3r 'Why. And they said, well that would not do. well, then I said, vell f

you have been resisting the Ileeesaity tor this, but suppose we turn it and you each tell

why you do not want to see it in the Charter. Then as that kind of discussion started,

actually I believe on that subject Dean Gildersleeve was the first one then to join

me in saying this ought to be in, and then as I remember it was Congressman Eaton but

they finally came around' and, as you know, it is in the Charter and that literally

started with a memorandum that I circulated to our United States del,gation, then after

they agreed it ought to be in there, then brought it up in the :'ive-?ower meetings and

talked it over a.~d it finally stayed in. But what is it Article 54 now? I think it

is:. I am not sure. But it is you see, the problem that was though of there is that if

a Security Council action was vetoed and an armed attack was going on, then unless you

had an affirmative and then you are supposed to, you know, not use your own military

force, you in effect would have to be violating the Charter in order to defend

yourself and we did not want that. And that of course that individual and collective

sel.f-defence has turned out to be a very important principle, even though at times it

is still controversiaL So I do have a fair amount of responsibility in that area as

to what finally happens ill the long term of history of the provision for inherent right of

individual and collective self-defence. You will find that was not in the original

Dumbarton Oal=s and so forth but came in at San Francisco.

Another one, of course~ was the matter of a manner of calling a conference to revise

the Charter. That is another place where we brought it up. And that is an interesting

subJeet because that was not in there at first. We this has' a very strong meaning, anti

-
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aaybe \re can get into it more that many of us were working on that Charter and felt that

for many reaons there were limits to what you could accomplish in getting that Charter

end. getting agreement and getting started. But we felt - and many discussed it - that

in 10 or 15 years it really ought to be rewritten, that is, we really ought to have a

new Charter and so that gave rise then to making it in effect easier to take a move for

a new Charter - I think it was after the tenth year or something of that kind and

the-re was some resistance to that When we discussed it in the Big Five meeting. I pointed

out that so many of the men of all these countries were then off in the war and this

Charter was being drafted and a few of us had been called back to take part of it from

the war, but that literally ;rou could not predict how the world would be and there was

just this latter part there, the beginnings of the outlook of a changing world picture,

rumours of new types of weapons and that all of those who were out in the war would feel

they had not been participating in their Government~, there ought to be a chance to

rewrite the Charter. And finally the sentiments njmg througb and that Artiele I do

not rem~ber now, is it 109 or something like that? now one of my current feelings

is that all of the countries haTe kind of drit'ted since that time and that

it is urgent to really bring the Charter up to date and that it does need rewriting.

It is a big task; it will take years to really bring through another agreement on it,

but I do think that that is a part of I spoke of the fact that many were saying there

would be a third wo~ld war anyhow in 15 or 20 years, we are wasting our time well,

here we are, 38 years later and while there have been many rough moments there has not

been e: world '\-rar a."1d to have the Charter do its job for the next 35 years I think. we do

need to brin~ it up to date. It is a .big subject.

QUESTlm;: So, thinking that the Charter needs to be up to date, do you have

some specific ideas that you would put fonTard?

STASSEK: I do have quite a few, but whether we ought to shift over to that

right .nOY I am not certain whether we should stay back on the original .••

Qt.i'ESTlmI: We were thinking of going into.it later, I think.

STASSEN: All right.

QUESTION: I should like to get back to presonalities a little bit. I was

thinking of Am.bassador Grornyko,. It seems to me that you had a number of discussions ... I
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do not know whether they would have been altercations but a number of discussions with

him and I wonder whether you recall some of them?

STASsn;: Well, we did, as you say, have many, many working relationships

through the years. A very able person and very clearly endeavouring to represent his

country and his Government's views. No, I always found that the most important thing

was to try to think through where he was coning from I mean that in the sense of

trying to analyse whatw-ould be their obj ectives, their fears, their concerns and their

aims and then try to eValuate those in relationship to what should be done. But I guess

he is one of the few who were active then that is still very active. Just right now,

as I guess the deputy in the country.

QUESTIOI~: How would you assess the general functioning of that Conference?

Do think it went pretty smoothly all along?

STASSEH: Not smoothly, no, but the fact of reaching an agreement. I think, was

quite a thing. And I do think that the fact that about half way through, particularly

Senator Vandenberg and I and a number of other delegates here and there, tried to face

up to the question of what needed to be the minimum Charter that was worthwhile to put
together. On what basis would we end the war with an Organization in being. or at what

point would it be better to say we have failed to establish an Organization and then

see what would happen subsequently when the vars were all over, whether we could then

make a start or whether there would be some other forms of inter-governmental .

consultations or something that would go on? That ultimate question was thought through

and discussed through about half way through the Conference and I think it cleared a lot

as to when was there an issue, that it should be made very clear that this was one that

just had to be resolved, because if we could not resolve certain issues it would be

better that we did not act like they had been resolved. And obviously, with the passage

of time. our judgements can be subject to review and to , as ye call it, post-game

quarter-backing, but we tried to think of it that way what kind of a Charter vould be

worthWhile to go ahead on and if we could not do certain things, what would be better.

And one of those, of course, vas the decision that there had to be something on the

Trusteeship portion, that is, ve could not really feel we had an Organization that could

survive if. it was completely silent on the whole big question of all the~e mandated

Territories and all of these colonies. A."ld one of the others was the veto. Then of

course the mat'ter of United Nations armed forces, which had a kind of a checkered

history, vhere these national forces devoted to United Nations objectives performed. sottle

good' fUIlcti:ons, but obviously no real United Nations force itself has been establiShed:..
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So there are a lot of those sections that - you know - academically people might - or,

as I say, in looking back, the advanta~e of hindsight might say well, why 4idn.'t YOU

do this or that? But we had a real sense at the time of trying to put together as good

a beginning as could be put together ~~th certain minimum standards that unless it

could have its own survivability and own functional qualities it would be better not to

make a beginning. We faced up to that issue.

QUESTION: You mentioned earlier on that you did quite a bit of the press

relations business, that you were responsible I think you co-ordinated, didn't you?

any stateoents made by the delegation to the press?

STASSElJ: Not really co-ordinated, but they officially made a decision I

don't even kno'W whether it shows in minutes and so on but there was a time when a

delegation at a delegation meeting - there had been various indications - well there

has been this story and that story and another story that had, you might say, either

inaccuracies or limited accuracy and so on and the delegations had reached a

conclus ion together that better to tell the press what was happening) regularly, than

leav'ing them just pick it up here and there and that was when they decided that they

wanted me to do it and then to and they reviewed it a few times, as to ho'W I was doinb

it ••.

QUES':'IOI{: llell the press had quite a problem, didn't they, I mean, they

vere not &1.loved to go into the committee meetings or and so they really had quite a .••

STASSEl~: No, there was no none of the sessions, only the plenaries were

open to the media, so the real work was just that they had to pick it up here and there.

It wasn't an easy problem either to decide just how to brief them, but Ithink I

established these rules I don't remember how clearly they came through to the

delegation, but we discussed quite a bit that time, it was fairlyearl;y: when we

decided we had to brief the media and they asked me to do it. ahd I said that I am neVer

going to give them any false information, I will. refuse to ever do that, but I will.

at times, tell them that it is not yet the time to discuss that issue, that it is true

there is such an issue and we are vorking on it, but it is not yet the time to tell

you what the United States delegation feels is going to happen to it or what their

position was on it.
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QUESTION: I think the American delegates at most conferences, and I expect

it vas the same here, are usually much more forthcoming than a lot of the other

delegates vho tend to hold back, seem to think there is some danger in speaking to

th~ media. and often miss possibilities to get across to the public a particular point.

STASSEN: Well, of course, the media also being completely free you get

many different kinds of results too. I remember that we discussed the fact that

you brief them doesn't necessarily mean you are going to be happy with the story.

QUESTION: I remember you gave a press conference. tairlY near the beginning

"here you outlined the nine United States objectives. I think that went over quite well,

for "hat the delegation of the United States hoped to get out of the Conference. !

suppose the media tended to bang around the Big Four and Big Five meetings and that

sometimes information would leak out of these meetings, get to the floor of the

CoIlII"l..ittees. Did such leaks ever cause embarassment to the United St1..tes?

STASSEN: Both embarassment and humour.

QUESTION: Well that's nice. Tell about some of them.

STASSEN: I remember one of the really uproarious times I can't right

renrember what meeting it was a delegate got up it seeI!lS to me he was from one

of the South American countries he said: "I see in our minutes that at our meeting

la.st week we did a, b, c, but I read in The New York Times that what we did was

x, y and z. Now what did we do?" And of course the whole meeting just broke up

in uproarious laughter, because it wasn't a deeply serious issue, but he happened to

find an instance in which and the upshot of it was, I thiru:, that the decision was

ma.dp- that nei.ther ~Tas accurate, neither th", ~in:ltes nor T~e Net: York Ti:nes, t~at,

actue.lly the whole subj~ct "ms still open or something or other. T}:1at was in one of those

sessions. It seems to me it was something about the Assembly. '\ You 1:no".7,

"tLere was the ::!latter of what vas domestic and "-hat vas a proper activity for the

United Nations, it was another one of these issues that tool: a lot of negotiating and

a lot of different views and that. language that finally evolved about within the sC"!le

of the Charter, ~hich was the soJ.ution that e::lerged out of that, was an interestint;:

sequence, but no matter whether simply by declaring something domestic that you could

close ~ttthe United Nations from having an:'tthing to say about it or just how that

and then ho....... the '\feto might e.ff"ect that and so on. There ,,-as ~uite a bit of negot:i'atin~

.@.O, cont~oYersy over that part ot the language.
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QUESTION: What about - you said there were both humerous and - times

where the media could be an etloarassment. Do you recall any particular time when

a story hit The new York Times, for instance?

STJ1..sSEl~: Well, there were times I can It remember the exact circumstances,

i.n fact, m~r be it is just as well that I don It try to recite it but there would be

times when, YOu know, one of the media stories would, in effect, say that the delegate

from a certain countr.{ took a certain position and his or her Government would cable

and say, '~'''hat are you doing? This is not, the position." you see, and the matter Or
sometimes they some of this happened in t'rusteeship, where if there was a media report

that a delegate of a country had taken a certain position on a trusteeship issue and

had not in fa.ct taken that position, but it caused embarassment in their home GoverDl!lents

because there were as I said, it is a kind of a subject where within Governments there

~ere different views- you know between defence department and state department or

both of them and if they had a colonial department and so forth. But there were times

'When they would come to me to verify to their Government that they had not said the

thing that vas in the story.

QUESTION: You almost have to give a signed statement

STASSEN: Well, yes, to actually confirm that, you know, that I was in that

meeting and, of course, by that time they all knew I was taking the leading role in

'WOrking out the trusteeship chapter. Sometimes it would be that a certain language

of a certain part of the document still had to be resolved, that it had not been agreed

or so~ething like that. But there were those kind of circumstances.

QUESTION: Governor Stassen, you seem to have had such a multifaceted

role at the Conference in fact, I hope that later today we are going to talk more about

international peace and security, the Security Council and an evaluation and so on but

if ! could put you a personal question, how did you view yoursel; your role at San

Francisco? Did you sort of consider that it was more representational, requiring a

great deal of diplomacy, t.han technical, or a mixture of both?

STASSEU: I reall.v viewed it as - you might say - this may seem to be a - as

basically being a member of the human race on this earth, in other words, that you could

not correctly try to put a national objective above the objective of all humanity it

needs definition and so forth, but you see, the background, as I mentioned, that I

had been advocating that there needea. to be an organization sOmewhat of this pat_ure,
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and had gone into quite a bit of detail on it years before the first call for a united

nations, in speeches and articles. And that in turn sprang out of the fact that as a

college student I had decided that in my lifetime I vanted to make a contribution towa.rd

vorld peace, and as I described earlier, I had felt that vhen the var broke out, that

I needed to" and that the right thing for me to do vas, as a young na.val reserve

officer, to go on duty and yet I thought in terms that that pulled me avay from my

life objective, but then President Roosevelt 's action pulled me back into this, so that

I felt that I rightly needed to be alert to the responsibilities of representing the

security of my O'WD country and the interests of my country, but that you really could

not fulfill the requirements of getting an Organ1~at1on like this going if you put

those as the priority concerns. Now that sometimes gave ~e so~e problems 'With those of a

more conservative or traditional view point and it gave some problems in definition and

irn:ple:-1entation, but that real.ly vas the vay I endeavoured to operate.

~U:!~~Trm,r· I think yOU 1rere one or the people I noticed who really thought

very much about the interdependence of peoples~ th~ n~e~ of one country for another.

It is sor,t:ti::les ~erj' difficult for America."ls, for instance, to rea1iz~ that what ha?pens

in a s~all countrJ in Africa can have an effpct on their Oi~ lives, on the lives of their

chi~dren and the economy of the country for instance, and it seemed to me that you had

thought out these things pretty far ahead of the time.

STASSE.i~ : Well, you have to have further background there too in the sense

that, YO"" see, within our do::restic political scene I had been the floor manager for

the Domina.tion of Vendell Wilkie "in 1940' you see, before the war ever started,

before Pearl Harbour, in 1940 -- and he was one that enunciated very dra'llatically that

this is one world. In fact, he at one stage wrote a book this is one -OD one vot"ld

and that sense - and as I have sometimes put it that, you know, in the modern world - anc.

it is JIOre true noW' by tar than it was 35 years ago that. in these decades ahead

it "ill not be a matter of 'Winners or losers, but the Itatter of a common experience of

all humanity on this earth. It is as basic as that. And to interpret that along with

the responsibilities of the national sovereignties and t~e loyalties and patriotism

to your Olm country is not easy, but that's vhere it rests.

QUESTION: I aid notice in reading some of the records that when compliments

were showered upon you for your patience and statesmanship in piloting the working paper

through the TrusteeShip Committee that you vere very quick to compliment the vot"k of the

memoers of: tbe other delegations, your own advisers. I think it vas rether a nice feelin~
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I remember you said once that they did the work, it fell to my lot simply to have the

honour of standing up and making the motions.

STABSEN': Well, that was true too. You see, you no one can indindually

accomplish things. And actually, by my true nature, I am not a patient person. I

get very frustrated. But I know that just showing frustration doesn't get results and

we did have really quite a remarkable devotion to objectives, back in getting this

Charter put together, and that atmosphere - you spoke earlier of the atmosphere - the

atmos~here of having come through the war and just in the stage of ending the war,

but the war had actually still been going on when we first met and the V.E Day only

comining during the Conference and then the other war not ending until after it it

was a world atmosphere that was quite significant.

QUESTION: Do you remember V.E. Day'? Did anything happen on that day, or did

the Conference just go on working and no particular celebrations'?

STASSEN: It was nothing that you could call a celebration. There of course

was a very important news you knOVl, a lot of informal discussions. I can't remember

any certain event connected with it or what you'd call a celebration. Eagerness for

news - it did it, I think, just about that time - some additional delegates arrived - it

seems to me that in the case of Denmark some additional people arrived after V. E. Day,

in effect, vere able to come then and I think that might have happened in some other

countries.

QUESTION: Did you get the feeling that there was a sort of esprit de eorps

among all the delegations?

STASSE!\: Yes, especially, you know, when it reached the stage well, that day

when it was realized that there was a document, that no one had ~r other motions to r.:.a1:~

u~on it of El~r.dmE'nt or question and they all voted for it. The session broke out into

applause; that is the first time that had happened in all those 'Weeks of struggle. And

then there was some of that sort of a - from that time on - that special esprit de corps

that they had all been a part of something and bad ditteren't Ti~ on what it might

finally !:lE:an but at least that it vas so~ething and so~ething significant.

qUBSTIOIi: Sometimes in conferences I have found that the delegates often p;et

$.u~h a watZ:'J feeling towards each other that they sort of have more empathy for their
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among all the delegations? 

-
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when it 'Was realized that there 'Was a document, that no one had ~r other motions to r.:.al:~

u~on it of El~r..dmE'r.t or question - and they all voted for it. The session broke out into 

applause; that is the first time that had happened in all those weeks of struggle. And 
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qUESTIOIi: Sometimes in conferences I have found tha.t the d£>lebates often ~et
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CG11~agues than they almost do for their own foreign offices or st.ate departments that

they get very close in their relationships. Did you find that at all 'Z

STASSE!~: I would..'1 't say that. No, not, I didn't really find that kind of a

feeling. But there certainly was developed a degree of rapport RoS human beillgs with

each other through those many weeksl and of course , you see, in part of you might

say the follow through in my case too was disrupted in the sense t.hat I went ~ight

beet out then to rejoin the Na~J. Wihtin a few days' after the signing I flew back out

to rejoin the Na~! for the rest of the war.

QUESTIOIJ: Well, Governor Stassen, I do thank you very much for so generously

giving of your time. I hope that we are going t.o have the chance, in anotner session t

to talk about other matters, such as Security Council and evaluation •••

STASSE!'~: Well, if you can yes; if is it available this afternoon?

QUESTION: It certainly is.

STASSEN: I must go to a luncheon meeting I have here in New York, but I'll

come back if it is all right at 2.30 p.m. and then I aT: willing to discuss what my

feelings are about potential future •••

~UESTION: Evaluation and potential for future... That would be Yonderful.

Thank you very much.

-

34

colleagues than they almost do for their own foreign offices or state departments - that 

tbey get very close in their relationships. Did you find that at all? 

-

- STASSE!~: I would..'1 't say that. No, not, I didn't reall:>" find that kind of a 

feeling. But there certainly was developed a degree of rapport RoS human beings with 

each other through those many weeksl and of course , you see, in part of - you might 

say - the fol10Y through in my case too was disrupted in the sense that I went ~ight

back out then to rejoin the Na~~. Wihtin a few days' after the signing I flew back out 

to rejoin the Na~! for the rest of the war. 

QUESTIOH: Well, Governor Stassen, I do thank you very much for so generously 

or your time. I hope that we - ­giving are going to have the chance, in anotller session t 

to talk about other matters, such as Security Council and evaluation ••• 

STASSE:t~: Well, if you can - yes; if - is it available this afternoon? 

QUESTION: It certainly is. 

STASSEI~: I must go to a luncheon meeting I have here in New York, but I'll 

come back if it is all right at 2.30 p.m. and then I ar: willing to discuss what my 

feelings are about potential future ••• 

~UESTION: Evaluation and potential for future... That 'Would be Yonderful. 

Thank you very much. 



SET B 3S

Joan Bush: Governor Stassen, in our previous session we spoke mostly about

your input to the Trusteeship section of the Charter. We touched also on how you saw

your role. In this session, to begin with, I'd like to ask you: with your extremely

active role as negotiator and mediator in the Trusteeship section, the debate particularl

~hich seems to have run from early May to June 20, how did you juggle your other

assignments?

STASSEN: Well, of course those were long days, but also I had a very

able staff that developed the work with me. I mentioned earlier that Ralph Bunche and

Ben Gerig worked with me a great deal, and then Cord Meyer and John Thompso~

And then at times, when there were other assignments, there would be other members of

the Foreign Service staff that would assist. That's the way it worked. But there ~ere

long hours, there's no doubt. Most of the members of the delegation, if not all, would

~ork from • frequently starting with an eight o'clock breakfast on up to sessions that

would go ten, eleven at night in different consultations and so forth.

QUESTION: Could you elaborate a little more, particularly at this moment,

on the work of these advisors? Exactly what sort of work they did, how they helped you?

STASSEN: Well, it would be a variation, depending on the circumstances.

Sometimes, they would go to consult somebody that you wanted them to go out and consult,

and report back. Sometimes,they would do a draft of an idea or of an amendment. And

other times, they would put together the different proposals of different delegations.

So there was a variation in staff work.

QUESTION: Did somebody sit in for you on the various committees, to keep

you up, or did you just get your information on what had happened from the delegation

meetings?

STASSEN: Well, on the important committees, one of the staff people would

sit in and listen and report back in addition to the official minutes which you'd get;

but in order to have an immediate input as to what was happening.

.. 
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QUESTION: One of the subjects we'd like to ask you about in this session

is, of course, concerning international peace and security, particularly your role in

Cl;)ntttiission Ill, with Senators Vandenberg and Connally, I believe. Could .you clarify

the committee responsibilities of each of you? Were they clearly divided, or did you

"'ork as a team?

STASSEN: Well, ,it was clear in each instance who would be the, you might

say, most responsible US delegate in one particular subject or one particular committee,

and then who would have the sort of supporting or second or deputy role. And on

international peace and security it was, of course, clear from the beginning that this

"'as the most sensitive, in relationship to the ratification of the Charter subsequently

by the United States Senate, and therefore that Senator Connally and Senator Vandenberg

had the key roles there. And the rest of us were supporting, implementing, working

along with them in that respect.

QUESTION: You mentioned advisors earlier. Which ones worked with you

on the Security Council?

STASSEN: I think particularly Ralph B~nche did, and Cord Meyer.

QUESTION: Oh, I see. I thought they were specialized in Trusteeship

matters.

STASSEN: No, no, not just Trusteeship. They did specialize, but they

also handled other things.

QUESTION: Well, as with the Trusteeship Council in our discussions this

morning, "'hat we are specially interested in is what, of course, is not on record:

interaction of the various personalities at the big-Four and -Five meetings, any

consultations to which you were party, sub-committee meetings and informal negotiat,ions

with the smaller Powers, and views within the US delegation, as well, of course, as

your own personal viewpoint.

We touched this morning on the right of regional groups to defend themselves without

prior authorization of the Security Council. I wonder if you would like to elaborate

little more on your own involvement on this.
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STASSEN: Well, I initiated the first memorandum as to having an Article

in the Charter about the inherent right of individual or collective self-defence if an

~rmed attack occurs, and persisted in that as being very vital in order to have a

document that wouldn't be misinterpreted in the future in reference to such a

circumstance. And, of course, in the collective self-defence aspect that did involve

the question of regional concerns. And there were some very acute regional concernS

as to whether the in effect, the world Organization would pre-empt the regional

situation in working out a solution. And there were very active views, conferences,

adjustments, on these subjects. And of course, in the very basic thing there was

considerable discussion of the need of some kind of a weighted vote. But on the other

hand it was soon found to be completely impossible to work out any kind of a weighted

vote at that time and to attain a Charter, so that we were left with the circumstances

of having an Assembly with one-State-one-vote, except for the adjustment in the

case of the Soviet Union and their special plea about in effect having three votes in

the Assembly, which had been that special concession that had been made to them.

And then the other side, the absolute veto in the Security Council. So then they

became adjustments as to just how comprehensive that veto could be and how the

Assembly could act without the Security Council stopping them, but not having the

same effect as Security Council action. And there was recognition that a lot of

this would have to be worked out over the future in actual experience. And of course

this ties right in with my view, and our view then, that in 10 or 15 years there ought

to be a weighted voting development. I think this is one of the very urgent matters

for what you might call the next 35 years of the United Nations.

And in my own reflection of what we went through at the time of the original

drafting of the Charter and the different thoughts expresed then, and the current

situation, I have thought that perhaps the best weighted voting system to develop

would be to have a new body in the total United Nations picture, and that this could

be in effect between the Security Council and the Assembly. It could be a sort of

a council of ministers, selected on a regional basis through weighted voting, and

acting with the members of it having a weighted vote. And so that in effect this council

of ministers would be somewhat like a cabinet to the Secretary-General. I think to

have a more formal and clear relationship for the Secretary-General as a continuing

thing, and to have a weighted voting reflection of the way in which to take action, if

you think it through, is quite important for the long-term future.
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And I have thought that perhaps the best method would be to take and rank all the

members by population and by gross production-gross national product put these two

rankings together and thereby attain one ranking, and then take a certain number at

the smallest amount of population and the smallest amount of production combined

gross national production give them a certain amount of weighted vote, and then

step up: a certain number of additional ones wouldhaveacertain additional weighted

vote. So you might say that you'd have, in the 157 or more States a certain number

might have a weighted vote of 10, another number would have a weighted vote of 20,

another number would have a weighted vote of 30, and perhaps on up to something like

100 votes for the largest and highest-production Powers. And these votes would be

cast in regions to select regional representatives on a council of ministers, and the

council of ministers might be from, like, 11 to 15, and I think working out over a

period of future years, that to reflect what is very much needed now and which was

not possible to work out in any manner in' the original Charter, although there had

been quite a few weighted voting proposals brought forward by the original Member

States in various ways.

I've also felt, of course, as we originally structured it, the working out of the

methods of arbitration and mediation and conciliation and judicial decisions of disputes:

we could only make very limited provisions in that respect in the original Charter, under

all the exigencies of that time. I think now, with the experience and with the modern

situation, in any revision of the Charter, or new Charter, there needs to be a great

expanS1on. And, I think in terms, if you had a regular group of individuals who were

skilled mediators and conciliators, arbitrators: so that they could be assigned to

particular disputes, and in many instances we know they would have to work on a

particular dispute over a period of years before they worked a solution. But getting

that kind of peace-making solution group structured and developed I think is very

important.

Another area which, as you know, in the present Charter the language hasn't really

been implemented - or possible to implement - is the matter of any - except in a sort of

an oblique way any armed forces or police forces under the United Nations itself.

I believe that in the long-term future a highly-skilled volunteer force individuals,

multi-lingual, who would volunteer to be on a peace-keeping or police force: not a

war-fighting force, but a force to step into sensitive situations and just be stabilizing
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in this interview right now, other than to hope that the project would get up on

the front page of the drawing board, so to speak· to ,ay to try to look ahead

4notber 35 or 40 years: what kind of an Organization do you need to adequately

handle it? And I think many people will bring forward then thoughts; and they have to

be evaluated and discussed and negotiated in the process. But I would emphasize very,

~ery much that the institution that we then originated in that Charter we never

expected to be able to stay in its present form, or its same form for this long a time,

and certainly not for the indefinite future. So that from our concepts and our work

in the original drawing of the Charter it is high time to get working on, in a

very priority way - high-priority way - the gradual process of re-drafting and restructuri

for the future.

QUESTION: Well, given the present state of affairs in the world and th~ w~y

the UN has sort of progratmIled its way of work these days, how do you think this can

COme about?

STASSEN: Well, of course, it has to be some of the Governments starting

to take initiatives and some of the United Nations personnel starting to bring forward

initiatives. And the, you know, the tremendous pressure of events and the circumstances

such really to more kind of drift along with the present structure: that's the great

problem. It's not easy to, you know, to lift out and I think at one stage back

there, when there was a certain amount of the, you might almost say, gloomy discussion

that, you know, 'How could we get the job done?'; I spoke of the history of how the

United States got going and first had the 13 colonies and how they almost broke apart

and failed, and then suddenly out of the problems and weaknesses came the new structure.

And I use that as not an exact example, of course for the great diversity in forms of

government and in economic and social and political systems but more to say that we

should not take too much counsel of doubts, but get an affirmative approach to what is

needed. And certainly, the necessity of preventing a third world war is even more acute

and important now than it was when we originally drafted the first Charter. And the

same time, the tremendous scientific advances in communication around the world and

the development of outer space make things possible now that couldn't have been

contemplated at that time in the way of communication and production and distribution

and the quality of life for the people.
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QUESTION: Well, you know very well that such ideas have to start with

G~vernments; they've got to be brought forward in some way. Have you discussed these

ideas within the US Government, with the State Department for instance?

STASSEN: At times they have been. You really have to this kind of

initiative either has to start within Governments or among people that then cause

the Governments to start to move.

QUESTION: Exactly.

STASSEN: You never can draw an exact line as to how things get moving,

but ... and, of course, in the original United Nations there were individuals and Government

in various parts of the world that gave special push, special leadership; and you

can't chart exactly how it'll happen, but I just express the hope that it will happen.

QUESTION: Well, I think they are wonderful hopes, and we certainly hope

they will. And you put forward a lot of extremely interesting ideas as to how one

might get down to the Charter today. Would Iyou be prepared to sit down and with

157 nations today and try to re-think the whole Charter? Do you think this would

be possible?

STASSEN: Absolutely. Obviously, you know, you'd divide into sub-committees

and things of that kind,and working groups, and different levels of attention. But

everyone should be involved in it.

QUESTION: Have you thought how you might attack this from the grass roots

up, as it were? In so many of the in so much of the work of the agencies, for

instance, attention is being put on working from the grass roots up in the World

Health Organization, primary health care starting from the bottom, working up to

the top: with the International Labour Organisation; with many of the other

organizations. Do you have any ideas as to how one might nurture setting forth these

ideas through non-governmental organizations or through the media?
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STASSEN: I think it has to start in a multiple of ways, and that you cannQt

predict which ones will move the most, anything as basic as this. And also~ of course.

that one of the fundamentals has to be that rather than criticism of the United Nations

in a negative way, there has to be the affirmative turn as to how it can be improved

and made more adequate for, as I say, a whole future generation. There is a tendency ­

and this is just human: it's universal almost - that, you know, if something isn't

q:uite working the way an individual or a group wants it to, to just emphasize that it's

not working right without taking that other step and saying, "It ought to be functioning

in XYZ manner, or it ought to have its structure amended in a certain way." So that

just that positive turn, which I hope will come up from many places: what is necessary

to have the United Nations be adequate for its purposes for the next 3.5 years? Just

that basic kind of change in analysis. You can say - you can put the whole emphasis:

What is it that is now inadequate in the experience under the original Charter? You

know, they will say, well, "How would you have redrawn the Charter if .you could have

foreseen what was happening how?" Well, I emphasize really we drew the best Charter

we could at that time. We knew of some of its limitations, but it was a matter of

do you get an organization going or not at all?

And we decided that, in the form that we were able to put together, it was

desirable to get it started, and I think, as I said earlier, the fact that we are here

3S years later and more, and there has not been a third world war, is, to considerable

measure, to the credit of the fact that there has been such an organization as the

United Nations.

Now then, instead of the very heavy emphasis so often on negatives, I'd like to

$ee" and will be advocating continuously a changing to the positive: what kind of a

United Nations should we have for the next 3.5 years in order to accomplish the

QUESTION: Well, again, I would go back to asking you if you think that' this

approach could come through the United States, in the General Assembly for instance, or

do you see -

STASSEN: It might in time. You never know just how those situations develop,

QUESTION: But I mean, apart from speaking about it today, have you made

any efforts to reach out to individuals in other countries -
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STASSEN: Yes, yes.

QUESTION: through any sort of organized programme, network?

STASSEN: Well, it's, you might say, through whatever avenues are open;

and, of course, stimulating the academic circles, stimulating Government~, and

responding to inquiries and so forth, and encouraging the media to do deeper analysis:

things of that kind.

QUESTION: When you say responding to inquiries from whom?

STASSEN: Individuals and Governments.

QUESTION: They just write to you, you mean?

STASSEN: Yes. See, I've also been active in, for instance, the World

~eace through Law movement of the World Judges Association and the World Lawyers

Association; when they had the world meeting a few years ago in Geneva and I was

Chairman a World Law Day. There was a lot of discussion at that time.

For example, in that respect, one of my feelings was for years that the best

contribution to peace was to bring both Germanies into the United Nations. For a long

time there was resistance to that. And I think the prospects for future peace have

been advanced by gettin them both in. And I have been an advocate of more the

universality approach, that every kind of a governmental entity that is actually in

being over a territory and peoples, within the Organization and develop that

universal concept in many different ways. Now that, you know, can be debated, and it

is debated. But issues of that kind need to be taken up in the future, in my view.

QUESTION: It's often said that the UN is the victim of unduly high and

unrealistic expectations from people. Everybody blames the UN, as an organization, for

what is really the situation in the world today. Do you agree with this?

STASSEN: Somewhat. That is, I put it this way: that in evaluating what

the United Nations has and has not accomplished you have to try to think in terms of
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the same world without the United Nations. You can't think of just an ideal world

that had no problems within it and then that you ~ouldn't need a United Nations.

But if you think of the various kinds of problems of the world, and then think of it

under a circumstance where you've had the United Nations or if you didn't have one
\

at all, then I think you get a more realistic analysis of it.

I think too that this matter of expectations is a natural swing of emotions.

Sometimes, you know, the emotion of gloom and discouragement becomes dominant, and other

times that swings over to a high of anticipation. This again was one of the reasons

I think earlier in this group of interviews you talked about the talk I gave when the

United Nations Charter was signed and before I went back on active duty in the Navy:

and I said at that time that we've established a beach-head in mankind's long struggle

to find the way to peace, that it was not a guarantee of peace. There was a tendency

to over-anticipate what the United Nations could and would do. And those swings of

public opinion are always there in these basic situations, and you have to somewhat

lean against the swing if you're going to get good policies adopted.

QUESTION: One area which, of course, needs tremendous attention, and

which not only the UN, but the world, seems to have great difficulty struggling with

is disarmament. What are your thoughts on this? Let me get back to the conference

for a moment: did you ever bring up disarmament at the delegation meetings? There

was· so little in the Charter on this; was it ever discussed?

STASSEN: Yes, there was a bit of discussion, and it wasn't really possible

to make any direct incorporation of it; that came along mainly later on. And of course

since the War was still going on, you remember, why, you couldn't really talk very much

of disarmament at that moment, although there was some discussion of the longer-term

objectives. And, of course, there's been a lot of negotiation and study since that

time. And there now needs to be a great deal more of it.

QUESTION: But today, how do you think that the world and the UN should

be tackling this question of disarmament? Do you think there's a better way? There

has to be, I hope.

- 44SET B 

the same world without the United Nations. You can't think of just an ideal world 

that had no problems within it - and then that you wouldn't need a United Nations. 

But if you think of the various kinds of problems of the world, and then think of it 

under a circumstance where you've had the United Nations or if you didn't have one 
\ 

at all, then I think you get a more realistic analysis of it. -
I think too that this matter of expectations is a natural swing of emotions. 

Sometimes, you know, the emotion of gloom and discouragement becomes dominant, and other 

times that swings over to a high of anticipation. This again was one of the reasons ­

I think earlier in this group of interviews you talked about the talk I gave when the 

United Nations Charter was signed and before I went back on active duty in the Navy: 

and I said at that time that we've established a beach-head in mankind's long struggle 

to find the way to peace, that it was not a guarantee of peace. There was a tendency 

to over-anticipate what the United Nations could and would do. And those swings of 

public opinion are always there in these basic situations, and you have to somewhat 

lean against the swing if you're going to get good policies adopted. 

QUESTION: One area which, of course, needs tremendous attention, and 

which not only the UN, but the world, seems to have great difficulty struggling with 

is disarmament. What are your thoughts on this? Let me get back to the conference 

for a moment: did you ever bring up disarmament at the delegation meetings? There 

was-so little in the Charter on this; was it ever discussed? 

STASSEN: Yes, there was a bit of discussion, and it wasn't really possible 

to make any direct incorporation of it; that came along mainly later on. And of course 

since the War was still going on, you remember, why, you couldn't really talk very much 

of disarmament at that moment, although there was some discussion of the longer-term 

objectives. And, of course, there's been a lot of negotiation and study since that 

time. And there now needs to be a great deal more of it. 

QUESTION: But today, how do you think that the world and the UN should 

be tackling this question of disarmament? Do you think there's a better way? There 

has to be, I hope. 



SET B 45

STASSEN: Well, I think. - if you speak from a UN standpoint - I think it

would be a good thing if the United Nations directly passed a resolution that the

leaders of both the Soviet Union and the United States should get together and talk:

in other words, these two Members of the United Nations have such tremendous destructive

capacity that it makes no sense for them to bombard each other with strong words at

long distance. They really have to get in direct communication. Maybe the United Nations

can stimulate that.

If you want to get into a current sense, I would be advocating that the General

Assembly passed a resolution asking the Secretary-General to bring the Heads of State

of the USSR and the United States together. (Laughter.) That's really getting into

current issues. But it's really the kind of thing that needs to be done. The Secretary­

General does have the authority in the United Nations in small disputes between people:

two States, over a border or something. They take an initiative to get them together.

Well, is there any greater need in the world right now than to get the Heads of these

Governments that have these tremendous capabilities together? That's what you might

call the $64 question. (LaughterJ

QUESTION: It certainly is.

particularly your ideas on the future:

adapted.

Well, I think all that's been extremely

how you see that the UN Charter might be

STASSEN: I might say too that this should be interjected at this point:

one of the very important values of the United Nations in these past years is the fact

that it provides a method by which these various Powers, including the super-Powers,

are brought into contact with each other. In other words, if you did not -if you

stop to think; if analysts and others would stop to think in terms that if you did

not have a place and a method like this, so often the impetus is to when a dispute

is arising between major Powers is what's the result psychologically of who takes

the lead to get together. And the fact that they can have an easy contact and have an

entity of the United Nations to help bring them together is a good thing, and has

served humanity well in these past years.

QUESTION: ~o, looking back from the perspective of 38 years, are you still

as firm a supporter of the UN as when you signed the Charter?

SET B 45

STASSEN: Well, I think. - if you speak from a UN standpoint - I think it 

would be a good thing if the United Nations directly passed a resolution that the 

leaders of both the Soviet Union and the United States should get together and talk: 

in other words, these two Members of the United Nations have such tremendous destructive 

capacity that it makes no sense for them to bombard each other with strong words at 

long distance. They really have to get in direct communication. Maybe the United Nations 

can stimulate that. 

If you want to get into a current sense, I would be advocating that the General 

Assembly passed a resolution asking the Secretary-General to bring the Heads of State 

of the USSR and the United States together. (Laughter.) That's really getting into 

current issues. But it's really the kind of thing that needs to be done. The Secretary­

General does have the authority in the United Nations in small disputes between people: 

two States, over a border or something. They take an initiative to get them together. 

Well, is there any greater need in the world right now than to get the Heads of these 

Governments that have these tremendous capabilities together? That's what you mightinteres~i

call the $64 question. (LaughterJ 

QUESTION: It certainly is. Well, I think all that's been extremely interes~i

particularly your ideas on the future: how you see that the UN Charter might be 

adapted. 

STASSEN: I might say too that this should be interjected at this point: 

one of the very important values of the United Nations in these past years is the fact 

that it provides a method by which these various Powers, including the super-Powers,-
are brought into contact with each other. In other words, if you did not -if you-
stop to think; if analysts and others would stop to think in terms that if you did 

not have a place and a method like this, so often the impetus is to - when a dispute 

is arising between major Powers - is what's the result psychologically of who takes 

the lead to get together. And the fact that they can have an easy contact and have an 

entity of the United Nations to help bring them together is a good thing, and has 

served humanity well in these past years. 

QUESTION: ~o, looking back from the perspective of 38 years, are you still 

as firm a supporter of the UN as when you signed the Charter? 



SET B 46

STASSEN: Definitely, very definitely, and very much of one who urges that

it now be made more adequate for the next generation. That is what I think: that

instead of just tending-which is also a very human thing: well, we'll just work with

it as it is this year and we'll work with it as it is next year - to really lift that

thinking up: What do we have to do for the next generation? And what do we have to

start doing now to get it ready for the next generation? That's one of the most urgent

things, I would say.

QUESTION: Well, when you elaborated that very clear conception of how you

saw the way things should go or could go in the future: as the UN exists at the moment,

what do you think should be the principle preoccupation? Because, as you know, it's

to take time for the UN to change.

STASSEN: Oh, yes.

QUESTION: What do you think should be the principle preoccupation of the

UN today?

STASSEN: Well, the number-one preoccupation should always be, how do you

prevent war? And, of course, to increase the awareness of all humanity that it has reache

a stage where humankind has the capacity to literally destroy this one earth, and to

constantly do that educational emphasis. And then, to work on all of those matters that

affect the quality of life of all the peoples on the earth, and that includes things

as basic as food and health and water and land and air and all of that. In many respects,

what they have been doing, and just need to constantly evaluate and endeavour to project

further. Now maybe they will need to get into the matter of world finance and world

capital. There are specialized agencies and institutions -inthe International Monetary

Fund and the bank of settlements and the World Bank - but maybe when you think of these

different economic systems and the kind of consequences that can flow from them in their

own diversity and their own clash, some thinking on the level of the United Nations as

contrasted to the specialized agencies, of how you endeavour to assure that the

competition of systems in the generation ahead shall be in a framework of a certain

type of co-operation - an evolution - rather than in the framework of confrontation

and destruction. That's the very far-reaching thing, and I sometimes have said that
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I don't think there's as yet a,. you know, a sufficient intellectual movement, in depth,

what the modern world situation is, in the age of nucleonics and electronics, and that

is that the on this one earth, with all the people on it having the right to live

on it, with there being room enough for all of them, yet having the capacity to destroy

the earth, having the capacity for economic chaos, how should that affect the thinking

of economic systems, the thinking of the role of capital and credit? I think in terms

that the United Nations, as its own total entity,shou1d not only be thinking of its

structure for the next 35 years, but should think in terms that none of the specialized

agencies can be looked upon as having the exclusive responsibility and authority in

their specialized fields, because it does all overlap into the totality. So that I

would feel that in the United Nations of the future there should be more discussion,

study, recommendations, about such matters as financial policy, that there are specialized

entities for, about matters that affect health and food. There does tend to get to be

a departmenta1ization, realistically, and that can be carried too far if it then diminishl

thinking and policies on the most comprehensive value and comprehensive basis, which

is: what is the totality:pf the way in which humanity is going to live on this one

world?

QUESTION: Well, Governor Stassen, that was an extremely interesting

elaboration. Could I ask you to tell us something about your own early days and what

influences there were 1n your early life that perhaps somehow pushed you into thinking,

or into the direction of international peace?

STASSEN: Well, undoubtedly, of course, everything that happens to an

individual does influence what they do in life, as you know. I have been one with a,

you know, a deep and abiding faith in God from early childhood, and those religious

convictions have undoubtedly had a meaning. And I've always taken the concept of a

very deep respect for all religions and a personal concept of teChristian religion in

an affirmative way, the matter of "Blessed are the peace-makers" being an affirmative

injunction. That goes back to childhood and has continued.

Secondly, I think that the fact that World War One came up when I was a very small

boy now, I was born in 1907, so when I was 10, 11 years old World War One was at its

peak. And that undoubtedly, you know, I'd say, raised my own concern about wars and my

own knowledge of them. That was then, of course, the period when the men of our country
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went off to fight in Europe in World War One. That undoubtedly had an influence.

And then, another interesting factor: my parents were farmers and they did not have

much formal education, but they reached out and subscribed very early to the National

Geographic, so that on our farm table, from our earliest childhood, here was a monthly

opening to the world with more information about all peoples. And I think this had

quite an effect upon the way in which we looked upon the whole world as knowing

something about it. So all of these things undoubtedly had an impact; and then, as

I said, it came to the point where, with many very able faculty people at the

University of Minnesota, in both my-in my academic years, I really made a sort of a

decision to try to make an impact for world peace in my lifetime; and that's carried

through.

QUESTION:. Well, speaking about world peace, and, unfortunately, wars,

brings me back to the Security Council, back to the Conference if you don't mind,

to know something of your involvement in those very key issues such as the veto power,

the interpretation of the Yalta voting formula, and the attempt by the smaller Powers

to obtain a softening of great-Power unanimity in Council decisions on peaceful

settlements. What was your involvement in these issues? Were you involved in one

specifically, or did you sort of - they seem to be so intertwined that -

STASSEN: They are intertwined, and they did concern all of us in the

delegation; and I think we all gave extra thought to it. There was on the one hand

the feeling that there was a certain amount that was clearly decided at Yalta and that if

ther.e was to be a Charter it had to move that way. So there was a certain amount, in

that respect, of going in that direction because of that agreement. But parallel to

that, of course, there was a certain amount of thinking and analysis that if you

did not have weighted voting, that when it came to the, in effect, war-making power,

that those who had the biggest power needed some kind of a formal veto as to anything

that would cause it to be used. So there was a considerable amount of discussion of

that. And then, furthermore, in the US delegation there was this thinking that nothing

we did would mean anything unless the United States Senate ratified it, which would

take a two-thirds vote. And you almost never can, sort of, take that for granted on

any issue in a body as diverse as the United States Senate, because they arise in two
. of course

Senators from each of the states - at that time 48'lnow 50 - and they are elected
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over a period of years: they serve for six years. So that at anyone time in the

United States Senate there are some who've been elected two years before, four years

before, six years before: so you get a very wide range of individuals springing out

of a circumstance in the movement of both the economy and the foreign policy situation.

So that it is important that no one underestimates the circumstance under which this

great country of ours can act in a far-reaching treaty context,with the necessity of

getting that two-thirds vote. And, of course,with the, what I think was a very

intelligent and able thing that President Roosevelt had done bringing those Senators

onto the delegation we had represented right there in the delegation spokesmen for

those views, and they in turn were frequently in contact with their associates in the

Senate. So the whole Security Council type and the matter of veto and the matter of

use of armed forces were very much caught up in that situation. And it would be impossibl

to really evaluate how each one of these different constraints would come into the

final action. And you, of course, would get some writers who would write and say the

whole thing is caused by the Yalta agreement, or somebody else would say the whole thing

is caused by Senator Connally and Vanderberg and the United States Senate, or somebody

else would say the whole thing is caused by the military in one country or another.

It's a mixture of all of these kind of things, and the endeavour to project how it would

unfold and how it would happen. And as you know, those sort of military staff provisions

in the Charter really never have been implemented because they just really never did

fit to what realistically could happen.

QUESTION: How confident did you feel in the delegation that the Charter

would be ratified by the Senate.

STASSEN: Well, by the time we got to the end of it, we felt quite confident,

because, first of all, we had a Charter that both Senator Vandenberg and Senator Connally

said they'd go all out in recommending it; and, secondly, by that time we had developed

such a public opinion support in the United States that that was the great underwriter

of the Charter. I don't remember it exactly, but I think the public opinion polls as we

ended the work had shifted so much from, you know, the doubt and the gloom and so forth.

And of course in that same process, while we were working on the Charter, the ending of

the European War and then, of course, the whole circumstance was such that, I think, when

i i 

SET B 49 

over a period of years: they serve for six years. So that at anyone time in the 

United States Senate there are some who've been elected two years before, four years 

before, six years before: so you get a very wide range of individuals springing out 

of a circumstance in the movement of both the economy and the foreign policy situation. 

So that it is important that no one underestimates the circumstance under which this-
great country of ours can act in a far-reaching treaty context,with the necessity of-
getting that two-thirds vote. And, of course,with the, what I think was a very 

intelligent and able thing that President Roosevelt had done - bringing those Senators 

onto the delegation - we had represented right there in the delegation spokesmen for 

those views, and they in turn were frequently in contact with their associates in the 

Senate. So the whole Security Council type and the matter of veto and the matter of 

use of armed forces were very much caught up in that situation. And it would be impossibl 

to really evaluate how each one of these different constraints would come into the 

final action. And you, of course, would get some writers who would write and say the 

whole thing is caused by the Yalta agreement, or somebody else would say the whole thing 

is caused by Senator Connally and Vanderberg and the United States Senate, or somebody 

else would say the whole thing is caused by the military in one country or another. 

It's a mixture of all of these kind of things, and the endeavour to project how it would 

unfold and how it would happen. And as you know, those sort of military staff provisions 

in the Charter really never have been implemented because they just really never did 

fit to what realistically could happen. 

QUESTION: How confident did you feel in the delegation that the Charter 

would be ratified by the Senate. 

STASSEN: Well, by the time we got to the end of it, we felt quite confident, 

because, first of all, we had a Charter that both Senator Vandenberg and Senator Connally 

said they'd go all out in recommending it; and, secondly, by that time we had developed 

such a public opinion support in the United States that that was the great underwriter 

of the Charter. I don't remember it exactly, but I think the public opinion polls as we 

ended the work had shifted so much from, you know, the doubt and the gloom and so forth. 

And of course in that same process, while we were working on the Charter, the ending of 

the European War and then, of course, the whole circumstance was such that, I think, when 



SET B 50

we finished we were very confident that it would be ratified by the Senate.

QUESTION: But before you got to that stage there was that terribly long

haul; the - ooh - the dramatic crisis that nearly threw over the whole Conference: the

veto power. Could you tell us something of your involvement in that?

STASSEN: Yes. I worked very closely, especially, with Senator Vandenberg

at that stage; it did seem at one stage that the Soviet Union would press for an

interpretation of the Yalta agreement that literally, by a veto_in the Security Council,

you might say almost anything in the United Nations could be just stopped, including

really also stopping the Assembly or stopping any kind of resolution or any kind of

inquiry. And that was the point at which we concluded that if that turned out to be

the only interpretation that there was that it would be better not to have a Charter

at all. And that was then the point at which we urged President Truman to send

Harry Hopkins over to go directly to Marshall Stalin. As we analyzed it, they really

couldn't get a change in their instructions themselves, and that under that whole time

and structure the United States had to, in effect, reach out to the same place that

the Yalta language developed in the first place, which was between, then, Roosevelt

and Stalin and Churchill, and get a clear modification of the language. And that's

where that came up. And of course Mr. Harriman was in a part of that, and so forth.

QUESTION: Were you present in the penthouse when Ambassador Gromyko first

put forward the instructions he'd received from Moscow about the that they wouldn't

agree to freedom of discussion in the Security Council. I think that was the thing

that exploded: it all must have been a very tense atmosphere. Can you describe it

a little?

STASSEN: It was very tense. I think that at that very first seSS10n, that

Senator Vandenberg openly expressed the view that this meant that there would be no

Charter; that is, if that statement remained unchanged, there would be no Charter.

That was his view, and that statement of his had preceeding study, before he reached

that.
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QUESTION: Did you' sense a really low point in the whole of the Conference

I mean among the other delegates of the other nations?

STASSEN: Yes, there were times over this period of weeks when it looked

like there would not be a Charter. There were times when it was widely predicted in

the media that there never would be an agreement.

QUESTION: There seemed to be so many meetings going on in Secretary

Stettinius's penthouse. Did you have the feeling that the Conference had sort of split

into two? I would imagine there must have been a certain amount of frustration on

the part of some of the Foreign Ministers or the delegates of the other countries, who

were sort of trying to carry on committee meetings while certain individualized meetings

were going on in the penthouse.

STASSEN: Yes, there was. In other words, at times there were, you know,

comments at what was the use of meeting if they just had to wait for the big Five to

make a decision, or things of that kind. And there was a real working tension, an

inter-relationship tension. In fact, of course, all their different views had

influence, and we had to constantly convince them that there was an influence they

were having, even though they weren't in those meetings. That's about the size of it.

QUESTION: Did you have an empathy for the 'little Forty-Five'? Did you

pe~sonally have an empathy for their ideas, some of them?

STASSEN: I don't know whether empathy is the right word. But I did have

an understanding of where they were coming from. I listened to them a lot, and, in

fact, we tried we at some stages even sort of divided up our delegation and our

principal advisors and, you know, assigned them listening tasks, to go out and talk

to and listen to people; you know, even at stages when we didn't know what we could

do about the issue. But it was important that they have a chance to talk to somebody.

There was that realization.

QUESTION: . What was the atmosphere throughout the Conference on the day that

Senator Connally let it be known that unless the voting provision was agreed to there
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would be no Organization? I think he tore up the Charter or something. Were you

present in the meeting that day; what did you sense through the Conference?

STASSEN: Yes. I think I don't think there was general agreement in

the delegation or advance notice in the delegation that he was going to do that. But

I think that he felt from his work in that group that he had to kind of jolt them; and

he did jolt them.

QUESTION: It was quite effective. You made an intervention in the

committee of the Security Council that The New York Times regarded as the most effective

speech of the debate. That was when, I believe, you compared certain aspects of the

Security Council's role to that of a jury trial. And then again, in Commission you

made another speech which they aga~n considered impressive, when you compared possible

action of the Security Council to that of a policeman saying, "Stop fighting period!"

Were these carefully-prepared speeches, or did you make them on the spur of the moment?

Do you recall?

STASSEN: No, those were made in the psychology of the particular occas~on,

but they reflected advance study and advance consideration in our delegation about

where these issues rested. Frequently it would be a question of, you know, if you

could see a certain solution, potentially, to a problem; there's a question then, when

do you advance it? In other words, sometimes if you advance it too soon it cannot

fly, as we say. This was a sort of an intricate psychological thing. In other words,

when you'd get many different views being expressed it was important that some

viewpoints would get thoroughly expressed and even voted on - voted down - before another

proposal could come up. In other words, if somebody thought they really had the

answer to something, and it couldn't be the answer, but they couldn't be convinced

that it wasn't the answer until they advanced it, had it discussed and had it voted

down. And then you could bring forward a somewhat different solution to the same

problem. So that this was an area, too, where this matter of having a staff that was

listening and very sensitive, and where we tried to really keep the atmosphere and the

state of tensions and so on in mind.

I 
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I really do not recall the specific speeches you refer to, but obviously I did

feel a responsibility in those sessions I wus in, and there certainl~r were rrany

times - or a number of times - when it seemed like the psycholo£ical trend was

going the wrong way, -and I would try to make the kind of talk that would change

the trend. And apparently there was some result at some times there.

Qu7STION: Big happenings were going on in the Security Council, the

TTusteeship was plouebing away. I'd like to go back and backtrack a moment to

Trusteeship if you don't mind, and ask you if you could elaborate more on the

various interpretations of independence and self-government by the different

countries!

STASSEN: I know that it was a very extreme issue, and I couldn't recall

all of those nuances right now, because they were you know, the French had a

very definite view, the Belgians did, the British did. And certainly the

Philippines did. There were various interpretations of what independence meant,

of what self-gover~~ent meant, what self-determination meant •••

QUESTION: ,Yes, I think the word self-government doesn't translate

even into French •••

STASSEN: No.

QUESTION: •••but do you recall how you resolved these difficulties to

mesh together the Declaration?

STASSEN: Well, we resolved them in the language that finally came out

in the Charter, that's really the resolution of them ••• and that was another one

of the instances where we had to resolve the language in all of the five languages,

the wording. There were some of those times when we you know, we not only had

to agree on an English language and then had to agree on how that would be

translated into French and how it would be translated into Russian and Chinese and

Spanish, and there would be arguments about whether a word in another language was

the correct meaning, or a group of words, and sometimes you had to put in almost

an extra sentence in order to in another language get the same meaning coming

across. There were situations like that.
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QUESTION: Well, we've agreed that you all had to have some sort of

superhuman energy to get through this Conference •••

STASSD1: Still it had to be human... (laughter)

Qu~STION: •••but to what extent did you feel a sense of urgency that

the work must be completed by a certain time?

STASSE~: We didn't feel that, really. We I don't think there was

ever any arbitrary deadline. We did feel that if you got exhaustion of delegations

and then got some type of diversion .of events in the world, that you could lose

that moment in history and have no Charter at all. We did somewhat have that

in mind, which is, you know, always true that you can always have an explosion

of some kind of an event that can then make the preceding work just impossibl~

to carry through. So we did have that sense about it. And in that sense of

course, too, the very far-reaching question you know: suppose we were still

meeting when those atomic bombsfwere dropped in Japan. No one can say dogmatically

that the effect would have been X or Y or Z or what. That was the kind of an

event that could change the psychology, the thinking, the outlook, of people all

over the world.

Another interesting question there is, if the delegations were still working

on the draft, would the bombs have been dropped when they were dropped? I{obody

knows that one, you know. There was internal argument inside the U.S. Government

about whether or not to drop them, or where to drop them.

question: It was really a very close thing, wasn't it, the dropping of

the •••

STASSE.~: The Charter was signed in June, and these were dropped in

August. It was very close.

QUESTION: Well, do you think if the delegates had had the knowledge

not that the bomb had been dropped, but the knowledge that the bomb had been

developed do you:think this might have changed the outcome of the Charter?

STASSEN: It might have, but I don't think anyone can say.
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QUESTION: No, o~ course •••

STASSEN: That's the kind o~ thing that you know, in real •••

realistically, as I say, we certainly wanted to press to try to reach the point

ofan agreement .••but, to put it another way, and it isn't really very pleasant

even to talk about you know, if some head of some major Government had been

assassinated right in that period, that's the kind of thing that could have just

blown the whole thing apart, and you'd have to start again in another period of

history. So that it was fortuitous that we pushed on through and actually got

the signatures when we got them.

QUESTION: You touched this morning on Charter review, but is there

anything else that you can tell us about your own involvement in behind-the­

scenes activities before Article 109 was adopted?

STASSEN: Well, we drafted an idea ~or it, and then it went through

a number of changes, but it basically was to try to make it clear and more

practical to have the potential o~ a rewriting of the Charter. That was what

was behind it. It was discused a lot, about what its wording should be and how

it should provide. I think it finally came out that there it would take a

smaller vote at a ten-year period, or something like that ••• that was kind of a

compro~ise of different vie~~oints on it ••••

QUESTION: Was it not on that item that the delegation gave you sort of

freedom of action to work out the terms in debate as you saw fit?

STASSEN: I don't remember that particular part--I remember that I

was in effect responsible for handling the item, but I don't believe I was ever

given freedom of action. We almost always all worked with a matter of reporting

back before you finalized something. Freedom to explore, maybe, but ••• not really

to bind. I don't think anyone was ever eiven freedo~ to bind the delegation

without coming back with it. I'm pretty sure that was always our working method.

QUESTION: What about terms of withdrawal and suspension? Were you

involved in •.•

STASSEN: Those went through a lot of argument and debate and so

55 

• 
SET B 55 

-
QUESTION: No, o~ course ••• 

STASSEN: That's the kind o~ thing that - you know, in real •••-
realistically, as I say~ we certainly wanted to press to try to reach the point 

ofan agreement .••but, to put it another way, and it isn't really very pleasant 

even to talk about - you know, if some head of some major Government had been 

assassinated right in that period, that's the kind of thing that could have just 

blown the whole thing apart, and you'd have to start again in another period of 

history. So that it was fortuitous that we pushed on through and actually got 

the signatures when we got them. 

QUESTION: You touched this morning on Charter review, but is there 

anything else that you can tell us about your own involvement in behind-the­

scenes activities before Article 109 was adopted? 

STASSEN: Well, we drafted an idea ~or it, and then it went through 

a number of changes, but it basically was to try to make it clear and more-
practical to have the potential o~ a rewriting of the Charter. That was What 

was behind it. It was discused a lot, about what its wording should be and how 

it should provide. I think it finally came out that there - it would take a 

smaller vote at a ten-year period, or something like that ••• that was kind of a 

compro~ise of different vie~~oints on it •••. 

QUESTION: Was it not on that item that the delegation gave you sort of 

freedom of action to work out the terms in debate as you saw ~it?

STASSEN: I don't remember that particular part--I remember that I 

was in effect responsible ~or handling the item, but I don't believe I was ever 

given freedom of action. We almost always all worked with a matter of reporting 

back before you finalized something. Freedom to explore, maybe, but ••• not really 

to bind. I don't think anyone was ever eiven freedo~ to bind the delegation 

without coming back with it. I'm pretty sure that was always our working method. 

QUESTION: What about terms of withdrawal and suspension? Were you 

involved in •.• 

STASSEN: Those went through a lot of argument and debate and so 



·' . •S:E:T B 56

forth ••• and the matter of expelling and suspending and all of that ••• and I

really don 't recall all the diffeJ'ent nuances of that one. But I kno,,- there 'Were

many different views and it was a rugged issue.

QUESTION: Thinking about the Charter and its having been finally drawn

up despite a lot of long, hard work and debate and dissension, which section of

the Charter to do you feel the most proud of, from your o,,~ contribution?

STASSEN: I've never really thought of it in those terms. I think maybe

it always has been as to the totality rather than as to any certain section.

QUESTIO~I: Well then, how would you assess the contribution not only

of yourself but your colleagues to the entire Charter?

S~A£S:E:':: rell, I thinl: the entire group that asserr,bled frot:: the

5~ countries I would feel that there •••obvious1y greater judgement has to

occur after a much longer passage of historic time, but I thicl: it was a very

historic event and that everyone who vas there and joined in that final decision,

and all the GoverIl!!\ents 'behind t~er:, deserve a. lot of cre.::.it.

~DTS~IO:I: The Charter re~inds rre of the Prea~ble, ani Dean Cildersleeve

-,orl:i:l:- on t1:i s . :Jic ::c;; l:orr, ,d:.::. her at e.ll; eil'i you t::.in}: it could be n:.ore

finely written?

Well, I worked with her from the staner-oint I think you'd

f~n~ in the archiVES the Unite2 States d~le;.ation a lot o~ dif~erer-t crafts

1:.::.j a. lot of re,rrit:'n:- t:bat ""ent on. 1" thin}: at one starE sr.e askeu e"reryone

'::.l~;:' t~.e:" I tr.ir.l: she ii~ e. lot. : U.ink she 7.ight have eYen turned to S07:e of

~er own aca~e~ic peo?le to try to [et it so that it would have a 1astin: ~eaninc.

QUE27IO;x: Speaking o~ acade~ics rerr-inds me that I think you've always

ha5. cuite an af~inity ar.d. connection with Ea-rYard. Have you ex:olored :four ideas

,d.th Earvard at all? I !"e!L€r:De:- :;0'.1 did consult with the", before Jrou joined the

delef;ation •.•

S~~qSEN: Eefore! joine5 the delegation I had in fact also had conferences
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forth ••• and the matter of expelling and suspending and all of that ••• and I 

reall)' don 't recall all the diffeJ'ent nuances of that one. But I knOl..- there were 

many different views and it was a rugged issue. 
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up there before I vent off to var on my foreign pOlicy ideas. One of the things

! had done - it probably should be mentioned - or. the 25th anniversary of the

United liations I draft~d practically a whole complete ne~ Charter, and then it

war reQuesteu and was it has teen circulated quite a bit a~onE Governments and

study ~roups and so forth. It vould have to be redrafted again now, with the

passage of time, but in order that it would be more clear what I was talking

about When I said that the United Nations ought to be brought up to date and made

more adequate, I tried to put it all dO~ll on paper. So so~ewhere in ~y archives

I have a new Charter drafted on the twenty-fifth anniversary •••

QUESTION: Well, what happened to it?

STASSE!~: It's bouncing around.

QUESTION: It's still bouncing around?

STASSEI~: Oh-huh •••

QUESTION: Well, perhaps you should do another one not even waiting

for the fortieth ••• it takes a lot of work, but

STASSEN: It takes a lot of work, and of course it would be more

valuabl~ cJr far if, you know, if it's r-ulled together from a number of sources.

I~'s hard for a Government to officially lead in this area, that's another part

of it. ~mybe somewhere somebody ought to bring together former Secretaries of

State and former Foreign Ministers of Governments and get some kind of group

like that together or something. Or some educators together with some young

people and ••• or maybe some maybe different universities should start programmes

within their international relations studies to see what they think ought to

be in a new Charter. Thinking like that.

I'm hoping, and I've been trying and beginning again to try to stir up

the thinking and with the increased tension now to what a nuclear war would mean,

(with the increased attention now to what a nucleaar war would mean), there is

a sort o~ new rise of awareness of this, pe~~ps that can be in turn channeled

to think constructively of how it should affect the United Nations of the future.
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I've often emphasized that it isn't enough just to say a nuclear war would be a

terrific catastrophe, but you have to take the next step and say how do you

handle the affairs of the world so you decrease the danger of a nuclear war?

Or of any war?

QUESTION: Do you think that your experience at the Conference was

useful to you in your post-war career?

STASSEN: We have never I really have never thought in those terms

either. The most •••most things in life have plusses and minuses in them.

QUESTION: A little bit of both •••

STASSEN: Uh-hum.

QUESTION: You were appointed, I believe, special arms control

adviser to President Eisenho~er, and you were the United States representative

on the United Nations Disarmament Commission for a few years, I think in the

1950s.

STASSEN: That's right, mid-1950s.

QUESTION: Were they held in London?

STASSEN: Yes, before that there was the I was the adviser in this

field at the Geneva Summit Conference in 1955. And that was a very active

period.

~UESTION: As we near the end of thi~ interview, do you feel that there

is some aspect that we've omitted and that you'd like:to comment on?

STASSEN: \oiell, my main comment would be that I think that there is

a current tendency to undervalue what the United Nations has accomplished and

is currently accomplishing. There are of course these swings of opinion, but

I would hope that those factors that lead to that undervaluing would be turned
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into an affirmative thrust towards this restructuring for the next generation:

that's one of the things I would hope could be accomplished, a turn from

negativism into positive approaches.

I also would say that I don't underestimate the difficulty;of the United

Nations functioning and being improved in the next generation, but I still have

a fundamental optimism that put it another way: I don't think bringing it

up to position where it can function better for the next generation will be any

more difficult task than it was to get it going in the first place. Let's put

it that way. I think that, you know, when it came into being, then there was

a tendency to discount the difficulty of getting it started. Now there's a

tendency to magnifY its present inadequacies and problems and to exaggerate

what it would take to get it improved. So that my emphasis is, let's get at it,

know how difficult it is, but look upon it as something that just has to be

done for all humanity on this earth. I guess that's about the most I can say.

QUESTION: Governor Stassen, I'd like to thank you very much.

STASSEN: Thank you. This has been an unusual kind of a session, and

I appreciate your thoughtfulness and everything, and of course responded to the

letter that asked me to participate. Many of these things I haven't tried to

think of in detail for years.

I might say - another interesting thing - I saved all my archives, and they

are going into a new World Peace Centre within the Humphrey Institute out in

M~nnesota••• The University of Minnesota being my alma mater, and Minnesota

Historical Society being involved. So ••• some of the foundations have begun to

put up some funds to in effect get a World Peace Centre that centres on my.

pa.pers and my views, and maybe tha.t'll carry forward.

QUESTION: You preempted my closing remarks about looking towards the

future, but I think I get the feeling that you'd be quite ready to sit do~n right

now with 156 other Governments to revise the Charter, to take a new look at the

'Organization, to set it going in a new direction. Is that- correct?

STASSEN:

toward world peace.

'Or to work with anyone who is likeminded, to try to contribute

QUESTION: "World peace.," that's a good word to end on, I think•.Thank
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you very much, I think that this is goixgto be a most invaluable contribution

to our oral history progr8lllIlle.

STASSEI~: As I indicated in the written paper, I don't put any

restrictions on its use in whatever way. In ~act, i~ out o~ it if anybody

reviews any o~ this and they want to any responsible person wants to write

me and say "'"'''by did you think this" or "What about a di~ferent idea here" •••

I'm constantly in a more or less world correspondence about these things, and •••

I welcome it.

.,

you very much, I think that this is goi~to be a most invaluable contribution 

to our oral history programme. 

~~'- -.-E ... ll _ .. 

60

-
STASSEN: As I indicated in the written paper, I don't put any 

restrictions on its use in whatever vay. In fact, if out of it if anybody 

reviews any of this and they want to - any responsible person wants to vrite 

me and say ''''by did you think this" or "What about a different idea here" ••• 

I'm constantly in a more or less world correspondence about these things, and ••• 

I welcome it. 
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